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IMarry E.Gaudette, cpa, BC.
ICERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANT,

731 South Garfield Avenue
Traverse City, Michigan 49686
Work (231) 946.8930

Cell (231) 4097526

Board of Housing Commissionei's
Albion Housing Commission
Cathoun County, Michigan

We have audited the financial statements of the Albion Housing Commission, Michigan for the year
ended September 30, 2014. Professional standards require that we provide you with information about
our responsibilities under generally accepted auditing standards, as well as certain information related to
the planned scope and timing of our audit. We have communicated such information in our letter to you
dated January 13, 2015, Professional standards also require that we communicate to you the following
information related to our audit.

Significant Audit Findings
Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The significant
accounting policies used by the Albion Housing Commission, Michigan are described in Note 1 to the
financial statements. No new accounting policies were adopted and the application of existing policies
was not changed during the fiscal year ended September 30, 2014, We noted no transactions entered into
by the governmental unit during the year for which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus.
All significant transactions have been recognized in the financial statements in the proper period.

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are
based on management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions about
future events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the
financial statements and because of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ
significantly from those expected. There were no major sensitive estimates affecting the Housing
Commission’s financial statements.

The financial statement disclosures are neutral, consistent, and clear.

Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing our
audit,

Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements

Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified during the
audit, other than thosc that are clearly trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of
management. There were no misstatements noted during the audit.

Fax (231} 9461377
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Disagreements with Management

For purposes of this letter, a disagreement with management is a financial accounting, reporting, or
auditing matter, whether or not resolved to my satisfaction, that could be significant to the financial
statements or the auditor’s report, We are pleased to report that no such disagreements arose during the
course of our audit.

Management Representations

We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management
representation letter dated January 13, 2015.

Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting
matters, similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. If a consultation involves
application of an accounting principle to the governmental unit’s financial statements or a determination
of the type of auditor’s opinion that may be expressed on those statements, our professional standards
require the consulting accountant to check with us to determine that the consultant has all the relevant
facts. To our knowledge, there were no such consultations with other accountants.

Other Audit Findings or Issues

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing
standards, with management each year prior to retention as the governmental unit’s auditors. However,
these discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and our responses were
not a condition to our retention.

Other Matters

With respect to the supplementary: information accompanying the financial statements, we made certain
inquiries of management and evaluated the form, content, and methods of preparing the information to
determine that the information complies with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America, the method of preparing it has not changed from the prior period, and the information
is appropriate and complete in relation to my audit of the financial statements, We compared and
reconciled the supplementary information to the underlying accounting records used to prepare the
financial statements or to the financial statements themselves.

This information is intended solely for the use of the Albion Housing Commission and is not intended to
be, and should not be, used by anyone other than the Housing Commission Board.

Buny &. Gaudette, CPA, PU.

January 13, 2015
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CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANT

731 South Garfisld Avenue
Traverse City, Michigan 49686

Independ. itor’: Work (231) 9468930
1dependent Auditor’s Report ol 1231} Acv 7826

Fax (231) 944-1377

Board of Commissioners
Albion Housing Commission
Calhoun County, Michigan

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the business-type activities of the Albion
Housing Commission, Michigan, as of and for the year ended September 30, 2014, and the related notes
to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Albion Housing Comm ission’s basic financial
statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for

our audit opinions.
1.
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Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the business-type activities of the Albion Housing Commission, Michigan,
as of September 30, 2014, and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows thereof for the
year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s
discussion and analysis on pages 4-11 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such
information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the
basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied
certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for
consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion
or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with
sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the Albion Housing Commission, Michigan’s basic financial statements. The combining
financial statements and the financial data schedule is presented for the purpose of additional analysis and
is not a required part of the basic financial statements. The schedule of expenditures of federal awards is
presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by U.S. Office of Management and Budget
Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations, and is also not a
required part of the basic financial statements.

The financial data schedule and the schedule of expenditures of federal awards are the responsibility of
management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records
used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such. information has been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures,
including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and
other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America. In our opinion, the combining financial statements, financial data schedule, and the schedule
of expenditures of federal awards are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial
statements taken as a whole.

o2
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Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated, March | 2014,
on our consideration of Albion Housing Commission, Michigan’s internal control over financial reporting
and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant
agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal
control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an
opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance, That report is an integral part of an
audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering Albion Housing
Commission’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

N Borzy 5. Gavdotts, CP4, PC

January 13, 2015

1

3-
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Albion Housing Commission
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A)
September 30, 2014
(Unaudited)

As management of the Albion Housing Commission we offer reviewers of this audit report this narrative
discussion and analysis of the Albion Housing Commission’s financial activities for the fiscal year ended
September 30, 2014. This discussion and analysis letter of the Albion Housing Commission’s financial
performance should be read in conjunction with the auditor’s opinion letter and the following Financial
Statements.

The combined financial statements reflect all of the Housing Commission’s federally funded programs
and activities in one place. The Housing Commission reports all its activities and programs using the
Enterprise Fund type model. HUD encourages PHAs to use this accounting method as it is normally used
to account for “business-type activities” ~— activities similar to those found in the private sector.
Enterprise Fund types use the accrual method of accounting, the same accounting method employed by
most private-sector businesses. Under this method, revenues and expenditures may be reported as such
even though no cash transaction has actually taken place.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

The term “net position” refers to the difference between assets and liabilities. The Housing
Commission’s total net position as of September 30, 2014 was $4,196,221. The net position decreased by
$285,555, a decrease of 6.4% from the prior fiscal year.

Revenues and contributions for the Housing Commission were $1,162,194 for the fiscal year ended
September 30, 2014, This was an increase of $120,646 or 11.6% over the prior fiscal year.

Expenses for the Housing Commission were $1,447,749 for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2014.
This was a decrease of $53,257 or 3.5% from the prior fiscal year.

HUD operating grants were $737,375 for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2014, This was an increase
of $123,894 or 20.2% over the prior fiscal year. There were no capital contributions for the current fiscal
year. This was a decrease of $13,465 or 100.0% from the prior fiscal year.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This annual report contains this Management & Discussion Analysis report, the Basic Financial
Statements and the Notes to the Financial Statements. This report also contains the Financial Data
Schedule (FDS) as referenced in the section of Supplemental Information. The Housing Commission’s
financial statements are presented as fund financial statements because the Housing Commission only has
proprietary funds.
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Albion Housing Commission
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A)
September 30,2014
(Continued)

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Required Financial Statements

The Statement of Net Position includes the Housing Commission’s assets and liabilities and provides
information about the nature and amounts of investments in resources (position) and obligations of the
Housing Commission creditors (liabilities). It also provides the basis for evaluating the liquidity and
financial flexibility of the Housing Commission.

All of the curtent year’s revenues and expenses are accounted for in the Statement of Revenues, Expenses,
and Changes in Net Position, This statement measures the success of the Housing Commission’s
operations over the past year and can be used to determine whether the Housing Commission has
successfully recovered all its costs through its user fees and other charges, profitability and credit
worthiness.

The final required financial statement is the Statement of Cash Flows. The statement reports cash
receipts, cash payments, and net changes in cash resulting from operations, investing and financing
activities and provides answers to such questions as where did cash come from, what was cash used for,
and what was the change in the cash balance during the reporting period.

Notes to the Financial Statements

The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in
the basic financial statements and provide more detailed data.

Supplemental Information

This report also contains the Financial Data Schedule (FDS) as referenced in the section of Supplemental
Information. HUD has established Uniform Financial Reporting Standards that require Housing
Commissions to submit financial information clectronically to HUD using the FDS format. This financial
information was electronically transmitted to the Real Estate Assessment Center (REAC) and is required
1o be included in the audit reporting package.

FUND STATEMENTS

The Financial Data Schedule reports the Housing Commission’s operations in more detail. The Housing
Commission reports all its activities using Enterprise fund types. These funds are used to show activities
that operate more like commercial enterprises. The Financial Data Schedule is organized by the
government Catalogue of Financial Domestic Assistance (CFDA) numbers.

<55
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Albion Housing Commission
Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A)
September 30, 2014

(Continued)

FUND STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Low Rent Public Housing Progran: Under this program, the Housing Commission rents units that it
owns to low-income elderly and family households. This program is operated under an Annual
Contributions Contract with HUD. HUD provides Operating Subsidies to enable the Housing
Commission to lease these units at a rate that is based on 30% of the household income or a flat rent.

Capital Fund Program: Under this program, the Housing Commission is awarded funds each year to use
for Capital needs. The Housing Commission is awarded funds cach year to usc for Capital needs, The
Housing Commission also has the ability to use up to 100% of these funds, if need be, to supplement
Operating Subsidies, since the Housing Commission is considered a “small” PHA. This program is the
primary funding source for physical improvements to its properties.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

Net Position may serve, over time, as a useful indicator of a government’s financial position. As stated in
the following table, assets exceeded liabilities by $4,196,221 at the close of the fiscal year ended
September 30, 2014 a decrease from $4,481,776 in 2013. The decrease in net position of $285,555 was
due to the change in net position for the fiscai year.

The unrestricted net position was $431,041 as of September 30, 2014. This amount may be used to meet
the Housing Commission’s ongoing obligations. At the end of the current fiscal year, the Housing
Commission is able to report positive balances in all categories of net position. The same situation held
true for the prior fiscal year.

CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION

September 30,
Per
Dollar Cent
2014 2013 Change Change
Current and other assets $ 590,775 $ 588,765 $ 2,010 0.3%
Capital assets 3,765,180 4,073,385 (308,205) (7.6)%
Total Assets 4,355,955 4,662,150 (306,195) (6.6)%
Current liabilities 98,155 91,655 6,500 7.1%
Noncurrent liabilities 61,579 88,719 (27,140) (30.6)%
Total Liabilities 159,734 180,374 (20,640) (11.4)%
Net Position:
Net investment in capital position 3,765,180 4,073,385 (308,205) (7.6)%
Unrestricted 431,041 408,391 22,650 5.5%
Total Net Position $ 4,196,221 $ 4,481 776 $ (285,555) 6.4)%

6=
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Albion Housing Commission
Management’s Discussion & Analysis (MD&A)
September 30, 2014
(Continued)

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (Continued)

Total current assets increase of $2,010 was due in large part, to the positive cash flows.

The current liabilities increased by $6,500, in large part, due to accounts payable for PILOT increasing by
$4,195 over the prior fiscal year and therc was an increase of $9,267 in accrued liabilities-other for
utilities compared to the prior fiscal year.

The noncutrent liabilities decreased by $27,140 due to long-term accrued compensated absences
decreasing from the prior fiscal year.

The largest portion of the Housing Commission’s net position reflects its investment in capital assets (e.g.
land, buildings and equipment) less accumulated depreciation. The Housing Commission uses these
capital assets to provide service and consequently these assets are not available to liquidate liabilities or
other spending.

While the Statement of Net Position shows the change in financial position of net position, the Statements
of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position provides answers as to the nature and source of
these changes.




image19.jpg
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A)

September 30, 2014
(Continued)

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (Continued)

CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES,

Revenues and contributions

Tenant revenue
Non-dwelling rent

Total PHA generated revenue

HUD operating grants
Capital contributions
Other income
Interest income
Total Revenues and
Contributions

Expenses
Personnel services
Tenant services
Utilities
Maintenance
Insurance
Payments in lieu of taxes
Other supplies and expenses
Depreciation

Total Expenses
Change in net position
Beginning net position
Ending net position

Revenues:

Albion Housing Commission’s primary revenue sources are subsi

3 a6

AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION

09/30/14 09/30/13

382,164  $ 376950
33,232 28,863
215,396 405,813
737,375 613,481

0 13,465

6,697 5,149
2726 3,640
1,162,194 1,041,548
543,201 597,096
10,685 13,098
159,953 138,048
189,815 215,493
71,125 64,476

11,612 7417
120,548 107,121
340,810 358,257
1447,749 1,501,006
(285,555) (459,458)
4,481,776 4,941,234

$ 4,481,776

Dollar
Change

$ 5214
4,369
9,583

123,894

(13,465)
1,548
(914)

120,646

(53,895)
(2,413)
21,905
(25,678)
6,649
4,195
13,427
(17,447
(53,257)
173,903
(459,458)

30855

%
—Change

1.4%
15.1%
2.4%
20.2%

(100.0)%
0.2%

(25.1%

11.6%

9.0)%
(18.4)%
15.9%
(11.9)%
10.3%
56.6%
12.5%
(4.9)%
(3.5)%

dies and grants received from HUD.

Please note that Capital Fund Program grants can be classified as either soft cost revenue or hard cost
revenue, for this fiscal year the Housing Commission chose to classify all of the capital grants as soft
costs. Revenue received from HUD for fiscal year ended September 30, 2014 for the low rent program

operations increased from fiscal year endin,
September 30, 2014, revenue gencrated by the Ho!
total revenue), while HUD contributions account

g September 30, 2013 by $120,646. For the fiscal year ending
using Commission accounted for $415,396 (or 36% of
ing for $737,375 (or 63% of total revenuc). Total

revenues and contributions increased by $120,646, in large part, due to using more capital funds this

fiscal year by $73,819.

-8-
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A)
September 30, 2014
(Continued)

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (Continued)

Expenses.

Total expenses for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2014 were $1,447,749 while for the fiscal year
ending September 30, 2013 they were $1,501,006. This represents a 3.5% decrease in our operating
costs. The expenses increased, in large part, due to personnel costs decreasing by $53,895 from the prior

fiscal year.

The following represents changes in Federal Assistance received:

Dollar Per Cent
09/30/14 09/30/13 Change Change
Public Housing Operating
Subsidy $ 620,091 $ 583,481 $ 36,610 6.3%
Capital Fund Program 117,284 43,465 73,819 169.8%
Total 3 737,375 $ 626,946 3 110,429 17.6%

The above chart is segregated as to the Program source of funds, not the use of funds. HUD increased the
funding percentage for the public housing operating subsidy. The capital fund program utilized the
remaining 2012 CFP funds and a portion of the 2013 CFP funds this fiscal year.

Budget Analysis:

A Low Rent Public Housing Operating Budget for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2014 was
presented to and approved by the Board of Commissioners. We did not have to amend the budget during
the fiscal year. Actual results were in line with the budgeted amounts.

OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS

pO/w I\ B ¥ A e SRS e

The Albion Housing Commission provided the following housing for low-income individuals and
families:

09/30/14 09/30/13
Low Rent Public Housing Program 220 220

Albion Housing Commission had a 94% occupancy rate as of September 30,2014,
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A)
September 30, 2014
(Continued)

CAPITAL ASSETS

The Albion Housing Commission’s investment in capital assets, as of September 30, 2014 amounts to
$3,765,180 (net of accumulated depreciation). This investment in capital assets includes land, buildings,
improvements, and equipment.

CAPITAL ASSETS
NET OF ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION
September 30,
Dollar
2014 2013 Change
Land $ 19,144  § 19,144 § 0
Buildings 9,144,043 8,890,012 254,031
Furniture, equipment and machinery
- dwellings 167,809 158,615 9,194
Furniture, equipment and machinery
- administration 234,846 347,565 (112,719)
Building improvements 4,840,017 5,016,706 (176,689)
14,405,859 14,432,042 (26,183)
Accumulated depreciation (10,640,679) ( 10,358,657) (282,022)
Total 3 3,765,180 § 4,073,385 § (308,205)

Capital assets decreased by $308,205, because of capital outlays of $(26,183), depreciation of $340,810,
and disposal of fixed assets in the amount of $(6,422).

During the fiscal year ending September 30, 2014, our Capital Fund Program work projects included:
The Housing Commission’s capital outlays during the fiscal year included the purchase of a
computer; the purchase of 12 refrigerators and gas ranges; replace a circuit board; and a completed
a flooring replacement project.

Capital projects planned for the next fiscal year and beyond include the following:

Replace roofing at Grandview Homes; replace windows at Grandview Homes; replace entry doors
at Grandview Homes; and replace exterior siding at Grandview Homes.

-10-
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A)
September 30, 2014
(Continued)

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR’S BUDGET AND RATES

The Housing Commission is primarily dependent upon HUD for the funding of operations as well as
capital needs. Therefore, the Housing Commission is affected more by the Federal Budget than by local
economic conditions. The funding of programs could be significantly affected by the F ederal Budget.

Although the Housing Commission remains concerned about the future levels of HUD funding due to the
state of the federal budget, we feel that we are both financially and operationally in a strong position to
continue to provide safe, sanitary, and decent housing to our residents.

We know of no other currently known facts, decisions, or conditions that are expected to have a
significant effect on financial position (net Position) or results of operations (revenues, expenses, and
other changes).

REQUEST FOR INFORMATION

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Commission’s finances for all those
with an interest in its finances. Questions or comments concerning any of the information contained in
this report or request for additional information should be directed to;

Ann Kemp, Executive Director
Albion Housing Commission
1300 Cooper Street
Albion, Michigan 49224

A
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Albion Housing Commission
Statement of Net Position
September 30, 2014

ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables, net
Investments
Prepaid expenses and other Position
Total Current Assets

Capital Assets:
Land
Buildings
Equipment
Building improvements

Less: accumulated depreciation
Net Capital Assets

Total Assets

LIABILITIES and NET POSITION
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Tenant security deposit liability
Accrued expenses
Unearned revenue
Total Current Liabilities

Noncurent Liabilities:
Accrued compensated absences
Total Liabilities

Net Position:
Net investment in capital assets
Unrestricted net position
Total Net Position

Total Liabilities and Net Position

See notes to financial statements

-12-

$ 239,633
1,103

326,090
23,949

590,775

19,144
9,144,043
402,655
4,840,017
14,405,859

(10,640,679)
3,765,180

S 4355955

$ 45910
36,016

10,946

5,283

98,155

61,579
159,734

3,765,180
431,041
4,196,221

$ 4355955
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Albion Housing Commission
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, And
Changes in Net Position
Year Ended September 30, 2014

OPERATING REVENUES:
Dwelling rent $ 382,164
Non-dwelling rents 33,232
Operating grants 737,375
Total operating revenues 1,152,771
OPERATING EXPENSES:
Administrative 457,874
Tenant services 10,685
Utilities 159,953
Maintenance 377,693
Insurance 71,125
General expenses 29,609
Depreciation 340,810
Total operating expenses 1,447,749
Operating income (loss) ' (294,978)
NONOPERATING REVENUES:
Investment interest income 2,726
Other income 6,697
Total nonoperating revenues 9,423
Income (loss) before contributions (285,555)
CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS 0
Change in net position (285,555)
4,481,776

Net position, beginning

Net position, ending $ 4,196,221

See notes to financial statements

13-
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Albion Housing Commission
Statement of Cash Flows
Year Ended September 30, 2014

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Cash received from dwelling and non-dwelling rents
Cash received from operating grants
Cash payments to other suppliers of goods and services
Cash payments to employees for services
Cash payments for in lieu of taxes

Net cash provided by operating activ ities

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Tenant security deposits
Other revenue

Net cash provided by noncapita! financing activities

CASH FLOW FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINAN CING
Payments for capital acquisitions

Net cash (used) by capital and related financing activities
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Investments increased by
Receipts of interest income
Net cash provided by investing activities
Net increasc (decrease) in cash

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning

Cash and cash equivalents, ending

See notes to financial statements
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$ 413,953
737,375
(543,905)
(574,185)

(7417)
25,821

(154)

6,697

6,543

(32,605)

(32,605)
74,551
2,936
77,487
77,246
162,387

$ 239,633
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Albion Housing Commission
Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)
Year Ended September 30, 2014

RECONCILATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS)
TO NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Operating income (loss) $ (294,978)
Adjustments to reconcile operating (foss) to net cash provided (used)
By operating activities:
Depreciation 340,810
Bad debt allowance adjustment 2,269
Changes in Position and liabilities:
(Increase) decrease in Position:

Accounts receivable-tenants (580)
Prepaid expenses (1,214)
Increase (decrease) in liabilities:
Accounts payable 168
Accrued wage/payroll taxes payable (828)
Accrued compensated absences (30,156)
Other current liabilities 9,267
Accounts payable-PILOT 4,195
Uneared revenue (3,132)
Net cash provided by operating activities $ 25,821

See notes to financial statements
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Albion Housing Commission
Notes to Financial Statements
September 30, 2014

Note 1: Nature of Business and Significant Accounting Policies

Organization and Reporting Entity - Albion Housing Commission (AHC or the “Housing
Commission™) is a component unit of the City of Albion, a Michigan home rule city. The Housing
Commission is a public housing agency created by the City of Albion on July 10, 1950, consisting of a
five-member board appointed by the City Mayor and charged with the responsibility to provide low-rent
housing, under the low rent program Annual Contributions Contract, for qualified individuals in
accordance with the rules and regulations prescribed by the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban
Development (HUD) and other federal agencies.

The financial reporting entity of the Housing Commission includes its primary government. In
determining the financial reporting entity, the Housing Commission complies with the provisions of
GASB Statement No. 14 as amended by GASB No. 39, “The Financial Reporting Entity”, and includes
all component units, if any, of which the Housing Commission appointed a voting majority of the units’
board; the Housing Commission is either able to impose its will on the unit or 2 financial benefit or
burden relationship exists. There are no agencies, organizations or activities meeting the criteria,

A summary of the Housing Commission’s significant programs and activities is provided below:
Low Rent Public Housing Program

The Low Rent Public Housing Program is designed to provide subsidized affordable housing to low-
income residents at reduced rental rates. The Housing Commission receives federal annual contributions
from HUD to administer the program and cover some of the costs of operating and maintaining the public
housing units.

Capital Fund Program
The Capital Fund Program prov ides funds to modemize public housing developments.

Basis of Accounting — The basic financial statements of AHC have been prepared on the accrual basis of
accounting in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America
(GAAD) as applied to governmental units.

The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASBY) is the accepted standard-setting body for
established governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. Pursuant to GASB Statement
No. 20, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Proprietary Funds and Other Governmental Entities
That Use Proprietary Fund Accounting, AHC follows GASB guidance as applicable to proprictary funds.

The accounting and reporting framework and the more significant accounting policies are discussed in
subsequent subsections of this note.

-16-
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Note 1: Nature of Business and Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
A summary of accounting policies follows:

Cash and Cash Equivalents ~ Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand and all highly liquid
investments purchased with an original maturity of three months or less.

Net Position — In June 2011, the GASB issued Statement No. 63, Financial Reporting of Deferred
Outflows of Resources, Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Net Position. The objective of this statement
is to incorporate deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources, as defincd by GASB
Concepts Statement No. 4, into the definitions of the required components of net position, formerly net
assets. This statement also provides a new statement of net position format to report al] assets, deferred
outflows of resources, liabilities, deferred inflows of resources, and net position. This statement impacted
the format and reporting of the balance sheet. AHC implemented GASB Statement No. 63 during the
year.

Net positions are comprised of three categories (1) net investment in capital asscts, (2) restricted, and (3)
unrestricted.  The Housing Commission’s positive value of unrestricted net position in the primary
government may be used to meet ongoing obligations, When an expense is incurred for purposes for
which both restricted and unrestricted net position is available, the Housing Commission’s policy is to
first apply restricted resources. Each component of net position is reported separately on the statement of
net position.

i Net Investment in capital assets — This category consists of capital assets (including restricted
capital assets), net of accumulated depreciation and reduced by any outstanding balances of
bonds, mortgages, notes, or other borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition, construction,
and improvements of those assets.

ii. Restricted — This category equals the restricted cash of AHC and consists of net position
restricted for use by (1) external groups such as grantors, creditors, or laws and regulations of
other governments or (2) law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

il Unrestricted — This category includes all of the remaining net position that do not meet the
definition of the other two categories.

Use of Estimates - The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make cstimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets
and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses
during the period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

-17-
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Note 1: Nature of Business and Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Accounting Changes — Effective October 1, 2012, AHC implemented the provisions of Governmental
Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 62, Codification of Accounting and Financial Reporting
Guidance Contained in Pre-November 30, 1989 FASB and AICPA Pronouncements. ‘This statement
incorporates into GASB literature certain accounting and financial reporting guidance issued on or before
November 30, 1989 that is included in FASB statements and interpretations, APB opinions, and
accounting research bulletins of the AICPA Committec on Accounting Procedure.

Effective October 1, 2012, AHC implemented the provisions of Governmental Accounting Standards
Board Statement No. 63, Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources, Deferred Inflows of
Resources, and Net Position. This statement incorporates deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources, as defined by GASB Concepts Statement No. 4, into the definitions of the required
components of the residual measure of net position, formerly net assets. This statement also provided a
new statement of net position format to report all assets, deferred outflows or resources, liabilities,
deferred inflows of resources, and net position. This statement impacts the format and reporting of the
balance sheet.

Subsequent Events — The financial statements and related disclosures include evaluation of events
through and including, January 13, 2015, which is the date the financial statements were available to be
issued.

Tenant Accounts Reccivable and Allowance for Bad Debts — Tenant accounts reccivable are stated at
net rent amounts. Tenant accounts generally are collectible as long as the tenant is occupying the unit;
thus, no allowance for bad debts has been cstablished by management. When the tenant vacates the unit,
any unpaid balance remaining after application of the security deposit and after procedures have been
followed to recover outstanding amounts, is charged as a reduction of rental revenue.

Interprogram Activity — During the course of operations, transactions ocour within individual programs
that may result in amounts owed or transfers between programs. Offsetting interprogram receivables and
payables as well as offsetting interprogram transfers are eliminated for financial statement presentation.
For the year ended September 30, 2014, there were no interprogram receivables and payables and
$117,284 of transfers were eliminated.

Budgets and Budgetary Accounting — The Housing Commission adopts a formal operating budget each
year for its operating programs and on a project-length basis for its capital expenditures, which are
approved by the board of commissioners and submitted to the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban
Development for their approval, if required.

Property and Equipment — Property and equipment are recorded at cost. Costs in excess of $1,500 that
materially add to the productive capacity and extend the life of an asset longer than one year are
capitalized, while maintenance and repair costs are expensed as incurred. Property and equipment are
depreciated using the straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives:

Buildings and improvements 15 - 40 years
Equipment and furnishings 3 - Tyears
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Note 1: Nature of Business and Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Land and land improvements include approximately $19,144 of capitalized land that is not subject to
depreciation.

Note 2: Deposits and Investments

Michigan Compiled Laws Section 129.91 (Public Act 20 of 1943, as amended) authorizes local
governmental units to make deposits and invest in the accounts of federally insured banks, credit unions,
and savings and loan associations that have offices in Michigan. The local unit is allowed to invest in
bonds, securities, and other direct obligations of the United States or any agency or instrumentality of the
United States; repurchase agreements; bankers’ acceptances of United States banks; commercial paper
rated within the two highest classifications, which matures not more than 270 days after the date of
purchase; obligations of the State of Michigan or its political subdivisions, which are rated as investment
grade; and mutual funds composed of investment vehicles that are legal for direct investment by local
units of government in Michigan.

AHC has designated two banks for the deposit of its funds. AHC’s deposits are included on the balance
sheet under the classification cash and cash equivalents and consist of the following:

Cash — operations $ 239,633
Investments 326,090
3

The above deposits are classified by Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement Nos. 3 and 40
in the following categories as of September 30, 2014:

Bank deposits (checking, money market, savings accounts, and $ 565,528
certificate of deposits) )
Petty cash 195
3__sem

Custodial Credit Risk of Bank Deposits — Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank
failure, AHC’s deposits may not be returned to it. The Housing Commission does not have a deposit
policy for custodial credit risk. At year end, AHC had no of bank deposits (checking, money market,
savings accounts and certificates of deposits) that were uninsured and uncollateralized. AHC believes
that due to the dollar amounts of cash deposits and the limits of FDIC insurance, it is impractical to insure
all deposits. As a result, AHC evaluates each financial institution with which it deposits funds and
assesses the level of risk of each institution; only those institutions with an acceptable estimated risk level
are used as depositories.
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Note 3: Capital Assets

Capital asset activity for the year ended September 30, 2014, was as follows:

Balance Additions/ Retirements/ Balance
09/30/13 Transfers Transfers 09/30/14
Low Rent Program
Land $ 19,144  § 0 3 0 3 19,144
Buildings 8,890,012 254,031 0 9,144,043

Furniture, equipment

& machinery -

dwellings 158,615 9,194 0 167,809
Furniture, equipment

& machinery -

administration 347,565 0 (112,719) 234,846
Building improvements 5,016,706 0 (176,689) 4,840,017

14,432,042  § 263,225 $ (289,408) 14,405,859
Less accumulated

depreciation (10,358,657) § (340,810 3 58,788 (10,640,679)
Total $ 4,073,385 M 3,765,180

Depreciation cxpense was charged to functions/programs of the government as follows:

Business-type activities:
Low Rent Program $ 340,810

Note 4: Non-current Liabilities
As of September 30, 2014, the non-current liabilities are comprised of the following:

Accrued compensated absences-
Noncurrent portion $ 61,579

The following is a summary of changes in non-current liabilities for the year ended September 30, 2014:

Amounts
Balance Balance Due within
09/30/13 Additions Deductions 09/30/14 One Year
Long-term debt,
compensated
absences 3 88,719 $ 0 3 (27,140) $ 61,579 $ 6,842
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NOTE 5: Other Notes
5(a) Employee Retirement Plans

‘The Housing Commission participates with the City of Albion where each employee is covered under a
defined benefit plan with the Michigan Municipal Retirement System (MERS) that provides for annual
employer contributions with complete vesting after ten (10) years. The employer contributions for the
current fiscal year were $30,732. Further details are available from MERS at (800) 767-6377.

5(b) Risk Management

The Housing Commission is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, or
destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; employees health and life; and natural
disasters. The Housing Commission manages these vatious risks of loss as follows: Management
believes such coverage is sufficient to preclude any significant uninsured losses to the Housing
Commission. Settled claims have not exceeded this insurance coverage in any of the past three fiscal
years.

5(c) Commitments and Contingencies
Commitments — Construction

At September 30, 2014, the Housing Commission had the following pending construction projects in
progress:

L.OCCS LOCCS
Authorized Disbursed
2011 CFP $ 256,351 $ 256,351
2012 CFP 237,297 237,297
2013 CFP 228,002 106,779
2014 CFP y 236,587 0

The Actual Modernization Cost Certificate for the 2011 and 2012 CFP’s were signed by the Executive
Director and sent to HUD on December 17, 2013 for their approval. HUD on December 24, 2013,
approved for audit the cost certificates. The audited costs for the 2011 and 2012 CFP agree with the costs
shown on the Form HUD-53001.

Contingencies
The Housing Commission is subject to possible examination by Federal and State authorities who
determine compliance with terms, conditions, laws and regulations governing other grants given to the

Housing Commission in the current and prior years. No significant violations of finance-related legal or
contractual provisions occurred.
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Albion Housing Commission
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
And Notes to the Schedule of Federal Awards

Year Ended September 30,2014

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

Fiscal CFDA
Year Federal Grantor No. Expenditures

— e

) U.S. Department of HUD

Public and Indian Housing

Major — Direct Program
2014 Low Rent Public Housing 14.850 $ 620,091

Public and Indian Housing

Major — Direct Program

2014 Capital Fund Program 14.872 117,284
Total $ 731,375

NOTES TO THE SCHEDULE OF FEDERAL AWARDS

Basis of Accounting - The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the “Schedule”)
includes the federal grant activity of the Housing Commission under programs of the federal government
for the year ended September 30, 2014. Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the same
basis of accounting as the basic financial statements, although the basis for determining when federal
awards are expended is presented in accordance with the requirements of OMB Circular A-133, Audit of
States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. In addition, expenditures reported on the
Schedule are recognized following the cost principles contained in OMB Circular A-87, wherein certain
types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement. Therefore, some amounts
presented in this Schedule may differ from amounts presented in, or used in the preparation of the basic
financial statements.

Because the Schedule presents only a selected portion of the operations of the Housing Commission, it is

not intended to and does not present the financial position, changes in net position, or cash flows, if
applicable, of the Housing Commission.

22-




image36.jpg
arry E.Gaudette, cpa, PC.

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANT

731 South Garfield Avenue
Traverse City, Michigan 49686
Work (231) 9468930

Coll {231) 409-7526

Independent Accountant’s Report on Applying Agree-Upon Procedure Fax [231)945:1377

To the Board of Commissioners
Albion Housing Commission

We have performed the procedure described in the second paragraph of this report, which was agreed to
by the Albion Housing Commission (the “Commission”) and the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban
Development, Real Estate Assessment Center (REAC), solely to assist them in determining whether the
clectronic submission of certain information agrees with the related hard copy documents. The
Commission is responsible for the accuracy and completeness of the electronic submission. This agreed
upon procedures engagement was conducted in accordance with attestation standards established by the
American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The sufficiency of the procedure is solely the
responsibility of those parties specified in this report. Consequently, we make no representation
regarding the sufficiency of the procedures described below either for the purpose for which this report
has been requested or for any other purpose.

We compared the electronic submission of the items listed in the “UFRS Rule information” column with
the corresponding printed documents listed in the “Hard Copy Documents” column. The results of the
performance of our agreed-upon procedure indicate agreement or non-agreement of electronically
submitted information and hard copy documents as shown in the chart below.

We were engaged to perform an audit of the financial statements of the Commission as of and for the year
ended September 30, 2014, and bave issued our report thereon dated January 13, 2015. The information
in the “Hard Copy Documents” column was included within the scope, or was a by-product, of that audit.
Further, our opinion on the fair presentation of the Commission’s Financial Data Schedule dated January
13,2015, was expressed in relation to the basic financial statements of the Commission taken as a whole.

A copy of the financial statement package and the FDS, which includes the auditor’s report, is available
in its entirety from the Commission. We have not performed any additional auditing procedures since the
date of the aforementioned audit report.  Further, we take no responsibility for the security of the
information transmitted electronically to the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development,
REAC.

This report is intended solely, for the information and use of the Commission and the U.S. Department of

Housing and Urban Development, REAC, and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone
other than these specified parties.
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CITY OF ALBION

CITY COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA

Meetings: First and Third Mondays — 7:00 p.m.

City Council Chambers 4 Second Floor ¢ 112 West Cass Street + Albion, Ml 49224

COUNCIL-MANAGER
GOVERNMENT

Council members and

other officials normally in
attendance.

« Joseph V. Domingo
Mayor

s Maurice Barnes, Jr.

Council Member
1¢ Precinct

-+ Lenn Reid

Councll Member
2nd Precinct

«  Garrett Brown

Council Member
34 Precinct

* William Wheaton

Council Member
4 Precinct

* Cheryi Krause
Council Member
5 Precinct

® Andrew French
Mayor Pro Tem
Council Member
4 Precinct

* Dr. Sheryl L, Mitcheil
City Manager

* Bodwin Law Office
Afty.Cullen Harkness

« Jill Dominge
City Clerk

NOTICE FOR PERSONS WITH HEARING
IMPAIRMENTS WHO REQUIRE THE USE
OF A PORTABLE HEARING DEVICE:

VI

VI,

AGENDA
COUNCIL MEETING

Monday, April 6, 2015
7:00 P.M.
PLEASE TURN OFF CELL PHONES DURING MEETING

CALLTO ORDER

MOMENT OF SILENCE TO BE OBSERVED
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

ROLL CALL

MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBER'S COMMENTS
PRESENTATIONS
A. Albion Housing Update-Callie Taylor

B. Resolution of Appreciation-Marcus Ware, Friends and
Family of Albion-Donation of Basketball Rims & Supports in
Holland Park

C. Proclamation-Equal Pay Day, Carolyn Gilg, Albion BPW

D. Proclamation-April CDH Awareness, Kendra Gonzalez

CITIZEN’S COMMENTS (Persons addressing the City Council shall
limit their comments to agenda items only and to no more than five {5) minutes,
Proper decorum is required.}

CONSENT CALENDAR (VV)

{items on Consent Calendar are voted on as one unit)

A. Approval Regular Session Minutes-March 16, 2015
B. Approval of Special Council Session Minutes-
March 23, 2015

[TEMS FOR INDIVIDUAL DISCUSSION

A. Request Approval Annual Garbage Licenses (RCV)
1. Turner Sanitation
2. Republic Waste
3. Waste Management
4. Granger Container Service
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Independent Accountant’s Report on Applying Agreed-Upon Procedure

Page Two
UFRS Rule Does Not
Procedure Information Hard Copy Documents Agrees Agree

1 Business Sheet, Financial Data Schedule, all X

Revenue and Expense CFDAs
2 Footnotes Footnotes to audited basic financial X

Statements

3 Type of opinion on Auditor’s supplemental Report on X

FDS FDS
4 Basic financial statements Basic financial statements X

and auditor’s reports
require to be submitted
Electronically

Bany &, Gaudette, GPAPE

January 13, 2015

(inclusive of auditor reports)
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Albion Housing Commission
Financial Data Schedule
Year Ended September 30, 2014

FDS
Line Low
Item Rent
No. Program
ASSETS
Current Assets:
111 Cash-unrestricted $ 203,617
114 Cash-tenant security deposit 36,016
100 Total cash 239,633
Receivables:
126 Accounts receivable-tenants 7,354
126.1 Allowance for doubtful accounts (6,251)
128 Fraud recovery 1,670
128.1 Allowance for doubtful accounts-fraud (1,670)
120 ‘Total receivables, net 1,103
131 Investments-unrestricted 326,090
Other Current Assets:
142 Prepaid expenses and other assets 23,949
150 Total current assets 590,775
Noncurrent Assets:
Fixed Assets:
161 Land 19,144
162 Buildings 9,144,043
163 Furniture, equipment & machinery-dwelling 167,809
164 Furniture, equipment & machinery-administration 234,846
165 Building improvements 4,840,017

166 Accumulated depreciation (10,640,679)
160 Total fixed assets, net 3,765,180

180 Total non-current assets 3,765,180
190 Total Assets $ 4,355,955
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FDS
Line
Item
No.

312
321
322
333
341
342
345
310

354
350
300
508.4

5124
513

Albion Housing Commission
Financial Data Schedule
(Continued)

Year Ended September 30, 2014

LIABILITIES and NET POSITION
Liabilities:
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable<=90 days
Accrued wages/payroll taxes payable
Accrued compensated absences
Accounts payable-other government
Tenant security deposits
Unearned revenue
Other current liabilities

Total current liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities:

Accrued compensated absences
Total non-current liabilities
Total liabilities

Net position:

Net investment in capital position

Unrestricted net position

Total net position

Total Liabilities and Net Position

26-

Low
Rent

Program

$ 12,963
4,104

6,842

11,612

36,016

5283

21,335

98,155

61,579
61,579
159,734
3,765,180
431,041
4,196,221

S 4355955
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FDS
Line
Item
No.

70300
70400
70500
70600
71100
71500
70000

91100
91200
91500
91600
91800
91900
91000

92400
92500

93100
93200
93300
93000

94100
94200
94300
94500
94000

Albion Housing Commission

Financial Data Schedule

Revenues
Net tenant rental revenue
Tenant revenue-other

Total tenant revenue
HUD PHA operating grants
Investment income-unrestricted
Other income

Total revenue

Expenses
Administrative:
Administrative salaries
Auditing fees
Employee benefit contributions
Office expenses
Travel
Other
Total operating-administrative

Tenant services:
Other
Total tenant scrvices

Utilities:
Water
Electricity
Gas
Total utilities

Ordinary maintenance and:
Operations:

Labor

Materials and other

Contracts

Bmployee benefit contributions
Total maintenance

(Continued)
Year Ended September 30, 2014

$

27-

Low Capital
Rent Fund
Program Program Totals

382,164 $ 0o % 382,164
33,232 0 33,232
415,396 0 415,396
620,091 117,284 731,375
2,726 0 2,726
6,697 0 6,697
1,044,910 117,284 1,162,194
232,076 0 232,076
5,000 0 5,000
121,896 0 121,896
40,914 0 40,914
15,056 0 15,056
42,932 0 42,932
457,874 0 457,874
10,685 0 10,685
10,685 0 10,685
65,580 0 65,580
49,431 0 49,431
44,942 0 44,942
159,953 0 159,953
125,519 0 125,519
61,182 0 61,182
128,633 0 128,633
62,359 0 62,359
377,693 0 377,693
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96140
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96300
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96900

97000
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90000
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10000

Albion Housing Commission

Financial Data Schedule

(Continued)

Year Ended September 30, 2014

Expenses (continued):
Insurance:
Property insurance
Liability insurance
Workmen’s compensation
All other insurance

Total insurance premiums

Other general expenses:
Compensated absences
Payments in lieu of taxes
Bad debt — tenant rents

Total other general expenses

Total operating expenses

Excess revenue over (under)
operating expenses

Other expenses:
Depreciation expense
Total other expenses

Total expenses

Other Financing Sources (Uses):

Operating transfer in
Operating transfer out
Total other financing sources
(uses)

Excess (deficiency) of total
revenue over (under) total
expenses

Low Capital
Rent Fund
Program Program Totals
31,415 0 31,415
23,637 0 23,637
10,350 0 10,350
5,723 0 5,723
71,125 0 71,125
Las1 0 1,351
11,612 0 11,612
16,646 0 16,646
29,609 0 29,609
1,106,939 0 1,106,939
(62,029) 117,284 55,255
340,810 0 340,810
340,810 0 340,810
1,447,749 0 1,447,749
117,284 0 117,284
0 (117,284) (117,284)
117,284 (117,284) 0
(285,555) 0 (285,555)
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Albion Housing Commission
Financial Data Schedule

Excess {deficiency) of total
revenues over (under) total
expenses

Beginning Net Position

Ending Net Position

Unit months available
Unit months leased

(Continued)
Year Ended September 30,2014

Low Capital
Rent Fund
Program Program

(285,555) 0
4,481,776 0
$ 4,196,221 $ 0
2,640
2,539

29-

$

Totals

(285,555)

4,481,776

4,196,221
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CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANT

731 South Garfield Avenue

Traverse City, Michigan 49686

Work (231) 946-8930

Independent Auditor’s Report On Internal Control Over Financial Reporting Cell (231) 4097526

And On Compliance And Other Matters Based On An ot (250} 54S0077
Audit Of Financial Statements Performed In Accordance
With Government Auditing Standards

Board of Housing Commissioners
Albion Housing Commission
Calhoun County, Michigan

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the business-type
activities of the Albion Housing Commission, Michigan, as of and for the year ended September 30,
2014, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Albion Housing
Commission, Michigan’s basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated January 13,
2015.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Albion Housing
Commission, Michigan’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the aundit
procedures that ate appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the
financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Albion
Housing Commission, Michigan’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not cxpress an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Albion Housing Commission, Michigan’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination
of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement
of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A
significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less
severc than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with
governance.

Our consideration of intemal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or, significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, duting our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, m aterfal weaknesses
may exist that have not been identified.
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Albion Housing Commission, Michigan’s
financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could
have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing
an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do
not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other
matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly,
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Bteap £ Gonotts, C1%4 4T

January 13, 2015

-31-
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CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANT

731 South Garfield Avenve
Traverse City, Michigan 49686
Work (231) 946-8930

Coll (231) 4097526

Independent Auditor’s Report On Compliance For Each Major Program asfe31] vaéd 7t

And On Internal Control Over Compliance Required By OMB Circular A-133

Board of Housing Commissioners
Albion Housing Commission
Calhoun County, Michigan

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited the Albion Housing Commission, Michigan’s compliance with the types of compliance
requirements described in the OMB Circular 4-133 Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and
material effect on each of the Albion Housing Commission, Michigan’s major federal programs for the
year ended September 30, 2014, The Albion Housing Commission, Michigan’s major federal program is
identified in the summary of auditor’s results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and
questioned costs.

Management’s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and
grants applicable to its federal programs.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the Albion Housing Commission,
Michigan’s major federal programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred
{0 above. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted
in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Governmen!
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133,
Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular
A-133 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referved to above that could have a direct and
material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence about the Albion Housing Commission, Michigan’s compliance with those requirements and
performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for the major federal
program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the Albion Housing Commission,
Michigan’s compliance.
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Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, the Albion Housing Commission, Michigan, complied, in all material respects, with the
types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on its
major federal program for the year ended September 30, 2014.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of the Albion Housing Commission, Michigan, is responsible for establishing and
maintaining effective internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred
to above. In planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered the Albion Housing
Commission, Michigan’s internal control over compliance with the types of requirements that could have
a direct and material effect on each major federal program to determine the auditing pracedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major
federal program and to test and report on internal contro! over compliance in accordance with OMB
Circular A-133, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control
over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Albion Housing
Commission, Michigan’s internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a
deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a
reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal
program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in
internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over
compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material
weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged
with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However,
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of
OMB Circular A-133. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

Bery . Gowattts, (124 FE

January 13,2015
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CITY OF ALBION

CITY COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA

Meetings: First and Third Mondays — 7:00 p.m.

City Council Chambers ¢ Second Fioor ¢ 112 West Cass Street ¢ Albion, Ml 49224

PLEASE CONTACT THE City Clerk's

Office at 517-629-5535 and a listening

device will be provided upon nofification

If you require a signer, please nofify City

Hall ot least five {5} business days prior

To posted meeting time.

Xt

B. Request Approval Mechanical Amusement
Device Licenses (RCV}

1. Albion College

2. Albion Moose

3. Cascarelli's Tavern

4. Charlie's of Albion

5. Leisure Hour Club

6. Redbox Automated

7. Spartan Stores/Family Fare
8.R&R

9. Pizza Hut

C. Discussion/Approval for City Hall RFP's for
Energy Efficiency (RCV)

D. Discussion/Approval to Award Mowing Contracts to
Lohrke's Mowing (Smaill Equipment) and John J Hawkins
Construction Contractor {Large Equipment). (RCV)

E. Approvail of City Attorney Contract (RCV)

F. Discussion/Approval Resignation of Council Member
William Wheaton-4i Precinct (VV)

G. Discussion/Approval of Process to Fill Vacancy for Precinct
#4 (V)

H. Discussion/Approval Elimination of Albion Housing Licison
Position

|. Request Approval Resolution # 2015-18, To Approve
Purchase & Development Agreement with Downtown
Albion Hotel, LLC

J. Future Agenda ltems

K. Fhotion to Excuse Absent Council Member (s)

CITIZEN'S COMMENTS (Persons adaressing the Clty Council shall limit their
Comments to no more than five (5) minufes. Proper decorum is required.}

ADJOURNMENT
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Albion Housing Commission
Status of Prior Audit Findings
September 30, 2014

There were no prior year findings.

Vi
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Albion Housing Commission
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
September 30, 2014

Section I - Summary of Auditors’ Results

Financial Statements
Type of auditors’ report issued: unqualified

Internal control over financial reporting:
Material weakness(es) identified? no

Significant deficiency(ies) identified that are not considered to be

material weakness(es)? none reported
Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? no
Federal Awards

Internal control over major programs:
Material weakness(es) identified? no

Significant deficiency(ies) identified that are not considered to be
material weakness(es)? none reported

Type of auditors’ report issued on compliance for major programs: unqualified

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in accordance
With Section 510(a) of OMB Circular A-133? no

Identification of major programs;

CFDA Number Name of Federal Program or Cluster

14.850 Public Housing Low Rent Program

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B programs: 3 300,000
Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? Yes

Section II - Findings Related to the Financial Statements
There were no findings which are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Section TII - Findings and Questioned Costs for Federal Awards
There were no findings or questioned costs.

355
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RESOLUTION OF APPRECIATION
Friends and Family of Albion
April 6, 2015

WHEREAS: The Friends and Family of Albion has sponsored the
Summer League Basketball Program; and

WHEREAS: The Friends and Family of Albion ran the program for
10 years from 2004 until 2014; and

WHEREAS: The members of the group raised $7500 for four new
basketball rims and supports in 2004; and

WHEREAS: The Friends and Family of Albion posiiively impacted
the Albion Community in sponsoring this event.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Albion City Council
and Albion Recreation Department appreciates and recognizes
the donatioh of basketball rims and supports located at Holland
Park from the Friends and Family of Albion.

In withess whereof I have hevewnto- set my hand, and coused
;"”‘MA‘;

b A oo copmpve g
Joseph V. Domingo; Mayor |

PR
Lo f‘/’m al g
4
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FQUAL PAY DAY
April 14, 2015

Whereas: 40 years after passage of the Equal Pay Act and Title
VIl of the Civil Rights Act, women and people of
color continue to suffer inequitable pay differentials;
and

Whereas: 2013 statistics find that full-time working women in
2012 earned only 77% of the earnings of full-fime
men; and

Whereas:  Over a working lifetime, this wage disparity costs the
average American woman & her family $700,000 to
$2 million in lost wages, impacting Social Security
benefits and pensions; and

Whereas:  Fair pay strengthens the security of families today
and eases future refirement costs, while enhancing
the American economy; and

Whereas:  April 8 symbolizes the time in the new year in which
the wages paid to American women catch up fo
the wages paid fo men from the previous year.

NOW, THEREFORE, I, Joseph Domingo, Mayor of the City of Albion,
do hereby proclaim April 14, 2015 as Equal Pay Day in Albion and
recognizes the full value of women's skills and contributions to the
labor force, encouraging businesses to conduct an internal pay
evaluation to ensure women are being paid fairly.

In witness whereof I have hereunto- set my hand and couseds
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Congenital Diaphragmatic Hernia Awareness Day

WHEREAS:

WHEREAS:

WHEREAS:

WHEREAS:

Aprit 6, 2015

April 191 is Congenital Diaphragmatic Hernia Day
(CDH); and

Congenital Diaphragmatic Hernia is a hole in the
diaphragm that permits the abdominal organs to
move into the chest area before birth and cause
breathing problems; and

The cause of CDH is unknown. The University of
Michigan C.S. Mott Children's Hospital is participating
in the DHREAMS study in an effort to better diagnosis,
prevent and treat children with this disease; and

CDH occurs in about one of every 2200 births, the
overall survival rate is about 65-70% however with

research being done at The University of Michigan
the survival rate increases to over 80% .

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, |, Joseph Domingo, Mayor of
the City of Albion, do hereby proclaim April 19t, 2015 as
Congenital Diaphragmatic Hernia Awareness Day in Albion and
recognize the importance of the awareness of this disease.

Inwitnessy wheveof I have hereunto- set wmy hand and caunseds
the seal of thiy city to-be affired.

6 %PL’L&D%S/ o
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City Of Albion
City Council Meeting
March 16, 2015

CALL TO ORDER

Mayor Joseph Domingo opened the regular session at 7:00 p.m.
MOMENT OF SILENCE WAS OBSERVED

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

ROLL CALL

Maurice Barnes (1), Lenn Reid (2}, Garrett Brown (3), Cheryl Krause (5), Andrew
French (6) and Mayor Joseph Domingo. William Wheaton (4) was absent.

Administration: Sheryl L. Mitchell, City Manager; Jill Domingo, City Clerk; Scott Kipp,
Chief of Public Safety; Tom Mead, Finance Director; Peggy Sindt, EDC Director; Neely
Kent, EDC Office Manager; John Tracy, Code Enforcement Officer and Cullen
Harkness, City Attorney.

MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBERS' COMMENTS

Comments were received from Council Members Barnes, Reid, French and Mayor
Domingo.

PUBLIC HEARING

A. Obsolete Property Rehabilitation District for Albion Institute LLC, 101
N. Superior St.

Peggy Sindt, EDC President stated the taxes for this property will freeze at last
year's rate and will remain the same for the next twelve (12) years. This is a key
project that will help the downtown grow and also create employment that will
increase the city’s income tax base.

Nicholas Seehafer, Architect for Shaheen Development stated that Shaheen
Development is a family owned business that renovates properties for office
centers, historic preservation and medical office buildings. They also use local
labor for their projects.

He stated 101 N. Superior St. was built in 1900 as a commercial building with
10,000 square feet per floor. The budget for this project is two million dollars. It wilt
be a complete renovation of the exterior of the building including the stonework and
brick. A new roof and insulation has already been completed on the building. The
property is asbestos free and has been certified. This building will be for mixed use
of retail and office space.

031615 Minutes -1- 4/1/15
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Comments were received from Council Member Krause.
Mayor Domingo opened the Public Hearing at 7:30 p.m.
No public comments were received.

Mayor Domingo closed the public hearing at 7:31 p.m.
No council comments were received.
PRESENTATIONS

A. Albion Community School Choir

Jerri-Lynn Harper Williams introduced Music Teacher Steve Hartman and the
5t and 6" grade Albion Community School Choir. She thanked the councit
and the community for inviting them to perform.

The choir sang two songs and received a standing ovation for an outstanding
performance. . ) -

B. Redevelopment Ready Community-Jennifer Rigterink, Michigan Economic
Development Corporation

Jennifer Rigterink gave a brief summary of the requirements of becoming

a redevelopment ready community. They currently have three communities that are
certified. She stated this is a technical assistance program with state wide
certification. This will build a solid foundation for communities allowing them to be
proactive versus reactive.

The redevelopment ready community is a volunteer program with no cost attached
and acts as a type of third party audit.

City Manager Mitchell also acknowledged Rosalyn Jones of the Michigan Economic
Development Corporation.

Comments were received from Council Members Brown and Krause and City
Manager Mitchell.

C. Planning Commission-George Strander, Annual Report

George Strander, Chair of the Planning Commission gave the annual report

for the Planning Commission. He stated the powers and functions of the Planning
Commission are comprehensive planning, initiating zoning amendments, granting
special use permits and planned unit developments. The Commission is currently
working on the Master Plan which is how to develop a community. They have
developed a comprehensive plan committee that is working on re-development of
the existing plan. They want to find concrete idea's that they can make work for the
community.

031615 Minutes -2- 4/1/16
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D. Transform this Home Project-Krista Trout

Krista Trout was unable to make the presentation due to a family illness. This item will
be placed on the next agenda.

CITIZEN'S COMMENTS (Persons addressing the City Council shall limit their
comments to agenda items only and to no more than five (5) minutes. Proper decorum
is required.)

No comments were received.
CONSENT CALENDAR (VW)

A. Approval of Study Session Minutes — February 24, 2015
B. Approval Council Session Minutes-March 2, 2015
C. Approval Study Session Minutes-March 3, 2015

Council Member French cited a spelling error that needed to be cotrected on the March
3, 2015 study session minutes.

French moved, Krause supported, CARRIED, to Approve Consent Calendar as
presented. (6-0, w).

ITEMS FOR INDIVIDUAL DISCUSSION

A Request Approval Resolution # 2015-14, Obsolete Property Rehabilitation
Exemption Certificate for Albion Institute LLC, for Property Located at 101 N.
Superior St. (RCV)

Comments were received from Council Member Krause.

Barnes moved, Krause supported, CARRIED, to Approve Resolution # 2015-
14, Obsolete Property Rehabilitation Exemption Certificate for Albion Institute
LLC, for Property Located at 101 N. Superior St. (6-0, rcv)

B. Discussion/Albion Housing Liaison Position

Council Member Barnes stated that he feels the liaison position should
be eliminated but that council members should be allowed to sit on the
Albion Housing Commission board.

Councit Member French inquired as to whether the council was able to
ask the Albion Housing Commission to bring an update to the council on
a periodic basis.

City Manager Mitchell stated that the Albion Housing Commission is providing
the City with the meeting minutes and packets and they will be giving the
Council updates on a quarterly basis.

031615 Minutes -3- 4/1/15
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City Attorney Harkness stated the Council is able to pass Resolutions that
restrict the Albion Housing Commission capabilities.

Mayor Domingo asked to have the Albion Housing liaison position put on the

next agenda so Council can make a decision on whether they want to proceed
with the position or eliminate it.

Discussion/Request Approval Resolution # 2015-16, ADPS FEMA Fire Safety
Grant Application (RCV)

Comments were received from .Council Members Krause and Brown, Chief
Kipp and Mayor Domingo.

French moved, Krause supported, CARRIED, to Approve Resolution # 2015-
16, ADPS FEMA Fire Safety Grant Application (6-0, rcv)

Discussion/Approval Criminal Background Check Policy (RCV)

City Manager Mitchell stated the City did not have awritten criminal background
check policy and this policy will be applied across the board for all city

employment, boards and commission appointments and volunteer positions.

Council Member Barnes stated he did not feel the policy allowed for any type
of extenuating circumstances.

Council Member Krause, Brown and French and Mayor Domingo
liked the policy and felt that it protected the City from potential harm.

Council Member Krause asked City Manager Mitchell to check with other
communities and see what policy they might have.

Council Member Reid felt that there should be some leeway as to allowing
for extenuating circumstances.

City Manager Mitcheli stated she was willing to work with Council on the
language for the policy.

Comments were received from Council Members Barnes, Brown, Krause,
Reid and French, City Attorney Harkness, City Manager Mitchell and Mayor
Domingo. :

Future Agenda ltems

Mayor Domingo would like the Albion Housing Liaison Position on the next
agenda.

-4 - 4/1/15
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F. Motion to Excuse Absent Council Member (s) (VV)

Krause moved, French supported, CARRIED, to excuse Council Member
Wheaton. (8-0, w)

CITIZEN'S COMMENTS (Persons addressing the City Council shall fimit their
comments to no more than five (5) minutes. Proper decorum is required.)

Comments were received from Mike Bearman, 11016 29 Mile Rd.
EXECUTIVE SESSION

A. The City Manager requests an Executive Session under the Open
Meetings Act (Section 15.268 (a) P.A. 267 of 1976, as amended) to
consider the dismissal, suspension or disciplining of, or to hear
complaints or charges brought against or to consider a periodic
personnel evaluation of a public officer, employee or staff member of
individual agent, if the named person requests a closed hearing.

B. The City Attorney requests an Executive Session under the Open
Meetings Act (Section 15.268 (a) P.A. 267 of 1976, as amended) to
consider the dismissal, suspension or disciplining of, or to hear
complaints or charges brought against or to consider a periodic
personnel evaluation of a public officer, employee or staff member of
individual agent, if the named person requests a closed hearing.

ADJOURNMENT

Krause moved, French supported, CARRIED, to Adjoum to Executive Session. (6-0,
w) '

Mayor Domingo adjoumed to Executive Session at 8:40 p.m.
Mayor Domingo re-convened the Regular Session at 9:21 p.m.
Brown moved, French supported, CARRIED, to Adjourn the Regular Session. (5-0, w)

Mayor Domingo closed the Regular Session at 9:22 p.m.

Date Jill Domingo
City Clerk

031615 Minutes -5- 4/1/15
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CITY OF ALBION
~ Office of the City Manager
Sheryl L. Mitchell

112 West Cass Street ¢ Albion, Ml 49224
517.629.7172 + smitchell@cityofalbionmi.go?

MEMO

TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council
FR:  Sheryl L. Mitchell, City Manager
DA:  April 6, 2015

RE:  Agenda and Informational ltems

IX. A. Request for Approval of Annual Garbage License

City Ordinance (Section 66-61) requires businesses that collect, transport, dispose or recycle
refuse in the city to obtain a license and payment of the annual license fee, along with furnishing
a performance bond, vehicle insurance, and state inspection of vehicles. The requests received
are from Turner Sanitation, Republic Waste, Waste Management, and Granger Container Service.
These are all renewals. City Manager is recommending approval.

X. B. Request Approval Mechanical Amusement Device Licenses

City Ordinance (Sec. 10-67) provides that in order to operate a mechanical amusement devise on
one’s premises, a license must first be obtained from City Council. There are nine requests for
Council’s consideration. City Manager is recommending approval.

X. C. Discussion/Approval for City Hall REPs for Energy Efficiency

Council Member Barnes requested that this item appear on the agenda. Honeywell made 2
presentation for the Phase 2 of energy efficiency improvements (City Hall project) with an estimated
cost between $1.5 and $1.9 million, depending on whether conventional HVAC or geothermal HVAC is
selected. The Phase 1 Honeywell project was completed a few years ago and was funded in part by a
$2 million bond issue. It is indicated that the City’s current Act 99 IPA borrowing capacity if $1.35 million.
Shoutd the City Councit decide to pursue the proposed Phase 2 project, it would be the recommendation
of the City Manager to solicit bids as part of a RFP process.

X.D. Discussion/Approval to Award Mowing Contracts to Lohrke’s Mowing (Small Equipment
and John J. Hawkins Construction Contractor (Large Equipment)

The City received bids for the 2015 Grass and Brush Abatement Program for cutting weeds on
private property, as required by Chapter 90 of the Code of Ordinances. The recommendation is
to award the bids to the lowest bidders. To Lohrke’s Mowing for the “small equipment” mowing
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_City Of Albion
Special City Council Meeting
March 23, 2015

l. CALL TOORDER
Mayor Joseph Domingo opened the regular session at 5:30 p.m.
. MOMENT OF SILENCE TO BE OBSERVED
. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
IV. ROLLCALL

Maurice Barnes (1), Lenn Reid (2), Cheryl Krause (5), Andrew French (6) and Mayor
Joseph Domingo. Garrett Brown (3) and William Wheaton (4) were absent.

Administration: Sheryl L. Mitchell, City Manager; Jill Domingo, City Clerk; Scott Kipp,
Chief of Public Safety; Tom Mead, Finance Director and Cullen Harkness, City
Attorney.

V. MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBER'S COMMENTS

Comments were received from Council Member French.
V1. PUBLIC HEARING
A. Michigan Department of Natural Resources Trust Fund Grant for Extension
of Albion River Trail

Mayor Domingo opened the public hearing at 5:31 p.m.

City Manager Mitchell gave a brief overview of the extension of the Albion River
Trail.

No public comments were received.
Mayor Domingo closed the public hearing at 5:34 p.m.
Council continued discussion with comments received from Council Member
French, City Manager Mitchell and Greg Strand, Albion College.

B. Michigan Department of Natural Resources Passport Grant for Acquisition
and Placement of Bike Racks in the City of Albion.
Mayor Domingo opened the public hearing at 5:36 p.m.

03232015 special council minutes
-1- 4115
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City Manager Mitchell gave a brief overview of the passport grant and the
location of the bike racks in the City of Albion.

Comments were received from Jim Curry, Marshall who stated he was in support
of the trails and feels we are part of a wonderful trail system that will provide
recreation for the community.

Mayor Domingo closed the public hearing at 5:40 p.m.

No comments were received from the Council.

VIl.  ITEMS FOR INDIVIDUAL DISCUSSION

A. Request Approval Resolution # 2015-15, Michigan Department of Natural
Resources Trust Fund Grant for Extension of the Albion River Trail

French moved, Krause supported, CARRIED, to Approve Resolution # 2015-15,
Michigan Department of Natural Resources Trust Fund Grant for the Extension
of the Albion River Trail. (5-0, rcv)

B. Request Approval Resolution # 2015-17, Michigan Department of Natural
Resources Passport Grant Application for the Acquisition and Placement of Bike
Racks in the City of Albion

Barnes moved, French supported, CARRIED, to Approve Resolution # 2015-17,
Michigan Department of Natural Resources Passport Grant Application for the
Acquisition and Placement of Bike Racks in the City of Albion. (5-0, rcv)

VII.  CITIZEN'S COMMENTS (Persons addressing the City Council shall limit
their comments to no more than five (5) minutes. Proper decorum is required.)

No comments were received.

X.  ADJOURNMENT

French moved, Krause supported, CARRIED, to Adjourn the Special Council Session.
(50, w)

Mayor Domingo adjourned Regulér' S_essio'n".at 5:42 p.m.

" Date . : ' Jill Domingo--
.5 ; ' City Clerk

03232015 special council minutes
-2- 4/1/15
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2015 BUSINESS LICENSE
RECEIVED
MAILED APPLICATION |APPROVED BY
COMPANY NAME TYPE OF LICENSE |APPLICATION & PAYMENT |CITY COUNCIL
BILLY TURNER GARBAGE - 171212015 21712015
REPUBLIC WASTE GARBAGE 171212015 2/9/2015
WASTE MANAGEMENT GARBAGE 11212015 3/17/2015
GRANGER CONTAINER SERVICE INC GARBAGE 11272015 211712015
i
L :
ALBION COLLEGE MECHANICAL AMUSEMENT 11212015 21312015
ALBION MOOSE MECHANICAL AMUSEMENT 1/12/2015 2/17/2015
CASCARELLI'S TAVERN MECHANICAL AMUSEMENT 1/12/2015 1/22/2015
CHARLIE'S OF ALBION MECHANICAL AMUSEMENT 1/12/2015 3/10/2015 -
LEISURE HOUR CLUB MECHANICAL AMUSEMENT 111212015 112212015
PIZZA HUT MECHANICAL AMUSEMENT 1/12/2015 3/23/2015
REDBOX AUTOMATED MECHANICAL AMUSEMENT 1/12/2015 2/11/2015
SPARTAN STORES/FAMILY FARE MECHANICAL AMUSEMENT 1/12/2015 2/9/2015
R&R MECHANICAL AMUSEMENT 1/12/2015 2125/2015
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March 2, 2015

Mr. Dick Williams .
Honeywell International, Inc.
49116 Wixom Tech Drive
Wixom, Michigan 48393

Subject: Letter of Intént Regarding the City of Albion Phase 2 / Honeywell Project
Dear Mr. Williams:

This is the City- Of Albion’s Letter of Intent-that the City .of Albion ‘intends ‘to: procéed with Honeywell
International, Inc. towards finalizing a contract. The purpose of the guaranteed savings program is for
Honeywell to provide services tesulting in energy and operating cost savings for the City of Albion. The project
is anticipated to provide upgrades or replacements of HVAC systems, lighting systems, temperature control
systems, foofs, doors, windows, and plumbing fixtures at the City Hall facility.

This Letter of Intent shall be effective for 180 days or until superseded by an executed contract between the
parties, or until canceled by either party providing written notice to the other at least five (5) business days in
advance of the intended cancellation date, whichever shall occur first. During the time this Letter of Intent
remains in effect, the City of Albion’shall fiot negotiate with-any party other than Honeywell concerning the
guaranteed energy savings program offered.

During the time this Letter of Intent remains in effect Honeywell may, at its discretion and option, undertake
certain preparatory activities including, but not limited.to, data logging of lighting and HVAC system usage,
survey of mechanical systems, collection of facility plans, combustion testing of existing boilers, meter testing,
and other technical planning work necessary to determine final coritract cost and savings. In addition to the
above services, Honeywell shall work with the City of Albion’s asbestos contractor (if applicable) to establish a
budget cost for the encapsulation and / or removal of potentially harmful asbestos that will interact with our
program scope of work. Honeywell will put together a budget cost for the abatement as identified by the City of
Albion’s contractor and provide the funding if asbestos abatement is deterniined to be needed. Although funded
in the Honeywell program, the City of Albion shall contract directly with their chosen asbestos contractor. In the
event the parties do not redch agreement on a contract, or if the City of Albion terminates this Letter of Intent,
the City of Albion shall reimburse Honeywell for the costs incurred by Honeywell in undertaking said activities.
The cost for these activities shall not exceed $35,000.

The City of Albion intends to enter into contract with Honeywell for the guaranteed savings program in a form
substantially similar to the Honeywell Standard Agreement document executed with'the City for the Phase 1
project in 2009. It is understood and agreed between Honeywell and the City of Albion, however, that there is
no obligation on either party to reach agreement on a contract. It is further understood that except as specifically
set forth in this Letter of Intent, no agreement or obligation, express or implied, is created or intended between
Honeywell and the City of Albion.

- Sincerely,

Mrs. Sheryl Mitchell
_ City Manager

Authorized signature on behalf of the City of Albion . e T bR
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March 2, 2015

Mr. Dick Williams
Honeywell International, Inc.’
49116 Wixom Tech Drive
Wixom, Michigan 48393

Subject: Letter of Intent Regarding the City of Albion Phase 2 / Honeywell Project

-Dear Mr. Williams:

This is the City Of Albion’s Letter of Intent that the City of Albion intends to proceed with Honeywell
International, Inc. towards finalizing a contract. The purpose of the guaranteed savings program is for
. Honeywell to provide services resulting in energy and operating cost savings for the City of Albion. The project
is anticipated fo provide upgrades or replacements of HVAC systems, lighting systems, temperature control
systems, roofs, doors, windows, and plumbing fixtures at the City Hall facility.

This Letter of Intent shall be effective for 180 days or until superseded by an executed contract between the
parties, or until canceled by either party providing written notice to the other at least five (5) business days in
advance of the intended cancellation date, whichever shall occur first. During the time this Letter of Intent
remains in effect, the City of Albion shall not negotiate with any party other than Honeywell concerning the
guaranteed energy savings program offered.

During the time this Letter of Intent remains in effect Honeywell may, at its discretion and option, undertake
certain preparatory activities including, but not limited to, data logging of lighting and HVAC system usage,
survey of mechanical systems, collection of facility plans, combustion testing of existing boilers, geothermal test
bores, meter testing, and other technical planning work necessary to determine final contract cost and savings.
One specific activity to be undertaken is test bores for the geothermal systems proposed. In addition to the
above services, Honeywell:shall-work‘with the City of Albion’s asbestos contractor (if applicable) to establish a
budget cost for the encapsulation and / or removal of potentially harmful asbestos that will interact with our
program scope of work. Honeywell will fiit together a budget cost for the abatement as identified by the City of
Albion’s contractor and provide the funding if asbestos abatement is determined to be needed. Although funded
in the Honeywell program, the City of Albion shall contract directly with their chosen asbestos contractor. In the
event the parties do not reach agreement on a contract, or if the City of Albion terminates this Letter of Intent,
the City of Albion shall reimburse Honeywell for the costs incurred by Honeywell in undertaking.said activities.
The cost for these activities shall not exceed $50,000. . .

The City of Albion intends to enter into contract with Honeywell for the guaranteed savings program in a form
substantially similar to the Honeywell Standard Agreement document executed with the City for the Phase 1
project in 2009. It is understood and agreed between Honeywell and the City of Albion, however, that there is
no obligation on either party to reach agreement on a contract. It is further understood that except as specifically
set forth in this Letter of Intent, no agreement or obligation, express or implied, is created or intended between
Honeywell and the City of Albion. -

Sincerely,

Mrs. Sheryl Mitchell
City Manager

Authorized signature on behalf of the City of Albion
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_CITY OF ALBION
ACT 99 IPA CAPACITY

. AS OF 12-31-2014
2014 SEV Value - Ad Valorem 110,434,955
Times 1% Percent s 1.25%

© Act'99 IPA Capacity - -+ ©$1,380,437

Less Existing IPA

ABA Loan - 201 N: Clinton $4,581
Dump Truck Loan - Equipment Po - 819,201 -~
Total l_-:xisting IPA - $23,782

Act 99 IPA Borrowing Capacity - $1,356,655

Richard Williarﬁs at Honelywell spoke to Dickinson Wright

Bond Council. Accordinging to them a City is allowed to
borrow up to 1% percent-of their SEV in the form of
Installment Purchase Agreenﬁe’nts {IPA's) through local
banks. The calculation above reflects the City's capacity
to borrow based on these provisions.

- Please note, thisis a bo'rréwing éapa’c‘ify guideliﬁe. It does

not take into account cash flow, or budget restraints. Nor
does it consider other forms of existing debt payment
obligations, such as bond payments, etc.
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CITY OF ALBION
ANNAUL COST TO GENERAL FUND
FOR HONEYWELL PHASE 2

Conventional, Gas-Fired HVAC:

Additional

Total Phase 2 Annual
Annual (City Hall) Cost to
Year Costs * Savings Gen. Fund

1 $125,964 $71,759 $54,205
2 $126,260 $74,414 $51,846
3 $126,567 $77,167 $49,400
4 $126,886 $80,023 $46,863
5 $127,216 $82,983 $44,233
6 $117,964 $86,054 $31,910
7 $117,964 589,238 $28,726
8 $117,964 $92,540 $25,424
9 $117,964 $95,964 $22,000
10 $117,964 $99,514 $18,450
11 $117,964 $103,196 $14,768
12 $117,964 $107,015 $10,949
13 $117,964 $110,974 $6,990
14 $117,964 $115,080 52,884

$117,964 $119,338

$1,812,533

$1,405,259




image64.jpg
CITY OF ALBION
ANNAUL COST TO GENERAL FUND

FOR HONEYWELL PHASE 2

Geothermal HVAC:

N
Q)
2

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9

Total
Annual
Costs *

$163,496
$163,792
$164,099
$164,417
$164,747
$155,496
$155,496
$155,496
$155,496
$155,496
$155,496
$155,496
$155,496
$155,496
$155,496

$2,375,511

Phase 2
(City Hall)

Savings
$76,508
$79,339
$82,274
$85,318
$88,475
$91,749
$95,144
$98,664
$102,314
$106,100
$110,026
$114,097
$118,318
$122,696
$127,236

$1,498,258

Additional
Annual
Cost to
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02/05/2015 REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR CITY OF ALBION
PERIOD ENDING 12/31/2014

END BALANCE YTD BALANCE
12/31/2013 12/31/2014

GL NUMBER DESCRIPTION

Fund 101 - GENERAL FUND

Expenditures

Dept 265-MUNICIPAL BLDG:

101-265-702.00 SALARIES AND WAGES 5,711.69 4,572.88
101-265-704.00 OVERTIME 387.76 159.41
101-265-714.00 MEDICARE 84.77 66.37
101-265-715.00 FICA 362.57 283.81
101-265-716.00 HOSPITALIZATION INSURANCE 2,139.70 1,388.05
101-265-717.00 LIFE INSURANCE 20.25 9.87
101-265-719.00 PENSION CONTRISBUTION 0.00 10.35
101-265-720.00 WORKERS COMPENSATION 174.34 98.09
101-265-721.00 UNEMPLOYMENT INSURANCE 63.76 35.69
101-265-723.00 RETIREE HEALTH SAVINGS CONTRIB 59.52 44.18
101-265-741.00 UNIFORMS 75.00 125.00
101-265-750.00 SAFETY MATERIALS (OSHA) 336.74 1,326.11
101-265-776.00 MATERIALS AND SUPPLIES 592.91 712.42
101-265-785.00 BUILDING & GROUNDS REPAIR & MA 19,125.18 10,561.08
101-265-802.00 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 15,003.99 16,731.03
101-265-851.00 TELEPHONE

101-265-943.00 EQUIPMENT RENTAL 1,415.80 1,432.52 )

101-265-950.00 INSURANCE AND BONDS 337953 3,23791
101-265-955.00 MISCELLANEOUS 2552 0.00
101-265-976.00 BUILDINGS, ADDITIONS & IMPROVE 1,37432 0.00
Total Dept 265-MUNICIPAL BLDG: 74,188.00 64,452.03

TOTAL Expenditures

Fund 101 - GENERAL FUND:
TOTAL REVENUES 0.00 0.00
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 74,188.00 64,452.03

NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES {74,188.00) (64,452.03)
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CITY OF ALBION
CoDE ENFORCEMENT

MEMORANDUM

To:  Sheryl Mitchell, City Manager

C.e:  File

From: John Tracy, Code Enforcement Officer /" f/ﬂ
Ref.: 2015 Noxious Vegetation Abatement / Mowing Bids
Date:  April 1, 2015

Advertisement for 2015 Mowing Bids were advertised in the Recorder, Ad-Visor/Chronicle and
posted at City Hall.

On March 30, 2015, shortly after 10:00 A.M., Mowing Bids were opened, read and recorded.
A total of three (3) contractors submitted bids by the time and date specificd. Below are the
names and addresses of the contractors.

o Marshall Cutting Edge, Inc., Battle Creek, Michigan 49014

e Lohrke’s Mowing, 5445 Calhoun Rd., Albion, Michigan 49224
» JohnJ. Hawkins Construction Contractor, 6645 25Y% Mile Rd., Homer, Michigan 49245

The following information consists of 2015 mowing bids submitted:

Lohrke’s Mowing Marshall Cutting Edge

2015 Bid for small equipment: 2015 Bid for small equipment:

Walk site, remove obstacles, trim, Walk site, remove obstacles, trim,

collect and haul as needed: $36.00 per hr. collect and haul as needed: $40.00
Remove and haul brush: $41.00 per hr. Remove and haul brush: $80.00
Hand mowing: $36.00 per hr. Hand mowing: $40.00
Riding mower: §41.00 per hr. Riding mower: $60.00
Minimum total per site: $82.00 Minimum total per site: $80.00

Page 1 of 2

per hr.
perhr.
per hr.

per hr.
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CITY OF ALBION
Office of the City Manager
Sheryl L. Mitchell

112 West Cass Street + Albion, Ml 49224
517.629.7172 ¢ smitchell@cityofalbionmi.gov

services to and to John Hawkins Construction Contractor for the “heavy equipment” mowing
services.

X.E. Approval of City Attorney Contract

City Attorney Harkness informed Council he had tendered his resignation from Bodwin Law Firm. On
March 2, 2015, Council approved To Discharge Contract with Bodwin Law Firm as of April 30, 2015 and
discussed a Contract with Harkness Law Firm P.L.C. Before Council is the consideration of a Retainer
Agreement with Harkness Law Firm, PLLC for legal services at $51,943, effective May 1, 2015 and $85,000
annually commencing January 2016. The Agreement may be terminated with 90 days written notice by
either party and may not extend more than 10 years. The City Manager is recommended approval of the
Agreement.

X. F. Discussion/Approval Resignation of Council Member William Wheaton - 4% Precinct

Council Member William Wheaton has tendered a letter of resignation. Council action is to
approve the resignation.

X. F. Discussion/Approval of Process to Fill Vacancy for Precinct 4

According to Section 4.9 of the Code of Ordinances, a city office shall become vacant upon the
occurrence of a resignation approved by the council. Section 4.12 provides that “if a vacancy
occurs in an elective office...the council shall fill the vacancy by appointment within sixty (60)
days thereafter.” The term ends on the first Monday in December following the next regular
city election. It is the recommendation of the City Manager that the vacancy be posted and
that applications may be submitted from interested individuals residing in Precinct 4. It would
appear that the vacancy would need be filled on or before June 8, 2015. One suggestion would
be to have a deadline for applications of May 22", If desired, special sessions could be
scheduled to interview candidates. The appointment to fill the vacancy could be on the june 1,
2015 agenda.

X. H. Discussion/Approval to Elimination of Albion Housing Liaison Position

At the March 16, 2015 Council meeting, Mayor Domingo requested to have the Albion Housing
liaison position put on the next agenda so Council can make a decision on whether they want to proceed
with the position or eliminate.it.
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John J. Hawkins Construction Contractor Marshall Cutting Edge

2015 Bid for heavy equipment: 2015 Bid for heavy equipment:

Walk site, remove obstacles, trim Walk site, remove obstacles, trim

collect and haul as needed: $36.25 per hr. collect and haul as needed: $40.00 per hr.
Remove and haul brush: © $36.25 perhr. Remove and haul brush: $80.00 per hr.
Heavy-duty mowing, capable of Heavy-duty mowing, capable of

chopping 2” dia. woodstock: $55.00 per hr. chopping 2” dia. woodstock: $95.00 per hr.
Minimum total per site: $110.00 Minimum totat per site: $95.00.00

After review with Jim Lenardson, Director of Public Services, of all bids submitted for small equipment and
heavy equipment, and in review of the performance of Lohrke’s Mowing and John Hawkins Construction
Contractor for the past several years of having provided reliable and competent abatement of noxious vegetation,
it is of my opinion to award the 2015 Mowing/Grass and Brush Abatement Contract as follows:

e Award the small equipment portion of the 2015 Mowing/Grass and Brush Abatement
Contract 1o Lohrke’s Mowing.

e  Award the heavy equipment portion of the 2015 Mowing/Grass and Brush Abatement
Contract to John J. Hawkins Construction Contractor.

John Tracy
Code Enforcement Officer

Page 2 of 2
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CITY OF ALBION
STATE OF MICHIGAN

PROJECT: Ao/t
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CITY OF ALBION
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CITY OF ALBION
CITY ATTORNEY RETAINER AGREEMENT

This agreement made this day of , February 2015, by and between the
City of Albion, 112 W. Cass St., Albion, Mi; herein referred to as “City” and The
Harkness Law Firm, PLLC, P.O. Box 707, Haslett, M| 48840, herein referred to as
“Attorney”, delineates the terms, requirements and compensation for the provision of
City Attorney services to the City.

* 1. In accordance with Sections 8.1(a) and 8.2(a)*of the City Charter, the Attorney is
an administrative officer of the City who is appointed by and serves at the
pleasure of the City Council. Under the terms of this Agreement the City Council
retains the Attorney to act as general counsel for the City in all legal matters as
prescribed by the City Charter. In instances where the City Council decides to
retain outside special counsel, the Attorney agrees to cooperate with said
counsel as necessary and appropriate.

2. In matters where the Attorney has a conflict of interest, the Attorney shall obtain
the services of an independent attorney firm (designated by City Council to act as
City Attorney) to handle such matters at the City's expense. In all other cases
where the Attorney wishes the City to retain outside counsel to assist in any City
matter, he shall first obtain City Council approval.

3. The City shall pay to the attorney an annual retainer (which shall be paid on a
monthly basis, in advance) of ($51,943.08) for the remainder of 2015.
Commencing January 2016, the City shall pay to the attorney an annual retainer
of ($85,000.00). In exchange for the payment of the annual retainer, the Attorney
shall perform the services required by the City Charter:

a. Act as legal advisor o the Council, Manager, Clerk, Finance Director,
Assessor, Chief of Public Safety, other department heads and other City
Boards or Committees.

b. Prepare and file written legal opinions with the City Clerk when requested
by the City Council and/or the City Manager.

c. Prosecute all ordinance violations and represent the City in cases before
the State and Federal course and other tribunals, including the Tax
Commission. These matters include code violation enforcement actions,
drug forfeitures, income prosecution and all civil suits filed by or against
the City.

d. Prepare or review all ordinances, regulations, contracts, bonds and other
instruments as may be required by the City Charter or the Council and
provide a legal opinion thereon.
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e. Review police reports, issue praecipes, prepare complaints and warrants,
prosecute ordinance violations and pursue victim rights remedies,
including the collection of restitution.

f. Attend all meetings of the City Council {two regular meetings per month
plus special meetings, study sessions, council retreats, etc.).

g. Advise the Council relative to hiring outside attorneys.

h. Serve as a member of the Election Commission, which may entail working
election night and accompanying the City Clerk to the County Clerk’s
Office and comparing the number of voters in each ward after each
census.

i. Confer in office and over the phone with citizens, witnesses, or other
parties to proceedings involving the City.

j. Perform such other duties as may be prescribed by Charter or Council.

. As part of the annual retainer, the Attorney shall provide all the administrative
services and support necessary to manage the workload in order to complete all
assignments. This includes office facilities, support staff and supplies and
equipment.

. The City shall reimburse the Attorney on a monthly basis for any and all out of
pocket expenses incurred in the representation of the City inciuding, but not
limited to:

a. Filing Fees;

b. Recording Fees;

c. Transcript Fees;

d. Motion Fees;

e. Service of Process Fees;

. The Attorney for record keeping and analysis purposes shall keep detailed
records of hours spent by category of work, i.e. general counsel, prosecution,
court time, special fitigations, etc. The categories and process shall be mutually
agreed upon between the Attorney and the City Council.

. This Agreement shall be effective May 1, 2015 and shall continue until its
amendment by mutual consent of both parties or until terminated by sither party
with ninety (90) days written notification. This agreement may not extend beyond
ten (10) years without mutual consent of both parties.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement on the date
stated above.
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City of Albion

Joseph V. Domingo, Mayor

Jill. Domingo, Clerk

Date

The Harkness Law Firm, PLLC

Cullen C. Harkness, Member

Date
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30" March, 2015

Mayor Domingo, City Manager Mitchell, Councilmembers and constituents of the Fourth Precinct:

After a lot of soul-searching and careful consideration, it is with great regret that [ submit my
resignation, effective immediately, as Councilman for the Fourth Precinct for the City of Albion due to
health reasons.

| love and believe in Albion. For over 50 years | have given back to the community in the form of
volunteerism. As the years passed by, this naturally progressed into participating in elected office and
city government. I've enjoyed tremendously this life-long commitment to our city. On a personal level,
it has made me a much better person. On a practical Ig_vej, 1 lgeiieve 1 have made a difference.

| wish to encourage all of Albion’s citizens to become more involved in their city. It is easy to sit on the
sidelines and note all the opportunities we face. 1t is a hit more challenging, however, to become
involved and make a difference. While Albion has a great history of community involvement, | hope this
spirit and personal participation continues to grow. Volunteer, run for elected office, join an
organization that gives back — make the extra effort and both you and the city will gain in return|

In closing, I wish to express my appreciation to everyone over the past seven months who have shown
their support to me and my family. While | will no longer be a sitting member of the Council, | promise
to remain involved in the community. | look forward to seeing everyone during the spring and summer
months.

Sincere

William M. Wheaton
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RESOLUTION #2015-18
TO APPROVE THE PURCHASE AND DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT WITH
DOWNTOWN ALBION HOTEL, LLC

Purpose and Finding: The revitalization of downtown Albion has been and continues to be
a goal of the City. Downtown Albion Hotel, LLC is a development company seeking to
develop several properties in downtown Albion, including, but not limited to, the
construction of a hotel. It is anticipated that redevelopment of this site will increase
commercial activity in the downtown area, create employment, and revitalize urban areas of
the City. As the approval of the agreement is in the best interests of the City of Albion.

Council Member moved, supported by Council Member ,
to approve the following resolution

WHEREAS, the revitalization of downtown Albion continues to be a high priority for the City
of Albion; and

WHEREAS, Downtown Albion Hotel, LLC has agreed to construct a hotel in downtown
Albion in exchange for the transfer of City owned property for the sum of one ($1.00} dollar;
and

WHEREAS, it is anticipated that redevelopment of this ‘site will increase commercial activity
in the downtown area, create employment, and revitalize urban areas of the City; and

WHEREAS, the state incentive programs require local participation in development projects
and the transfer of the city-owned property within the project area demonstrates the City of
Albion’s local contribution to the Downtown Albion Hotel project; and

WHEREAS, entering into a purchase and development agreement with Downtown Albion
Hotel, LLC is in the best interests of the City of Albion and will stimulate economic growth;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the Mayor is herebyfauthorized toenter into a
Purchase and Development Agreement with Downtown Albion Hotel, LLC for the
construction of a hotel in downtown Albion:

1 hereby certify that the above resolution was adopted on April 6, 2015 in a regular session
of the Albion City Council, and this is a true copy of that resolution.

Ayes
Nays

Absent

April 6, 2015
Jill Domingo, Clerk
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PURCHASE AND DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT

THIS Purchase and Development Agreement (the “Agreement”) is made on this day of

April, 2015 between City of Albion, a Michigan municipal corporation, 112 W. Cass Street, Albion, Ml
49244 (“the City”) and Downtown Albion Hotel, LLC, a Michigan Limited Liability Company (“DAH"), 1100
S. Washington Ave., Saginaw, Mi 48601

A.

IN CONSIDERATION OF the mutual covenants and conditions contained in this Agreement, the
parties agree as follows:

RECITALS

The City of Albion is the owner of the property located in the City of Albion, State of Michigan
more fully described on Exhibit A (the “Property”).

Downtown Albion Hotel, LLC is & private development entity that seeks to develop the Property
along with adjacent parcels into a hotel.

Recognizing the mutual benefits that will accrue to each other by entering into a purchase and
development agreement, the City and DAH wish to enter into this Agreement as more fully set
forth below:

SECTION 1
SALE AND PURCHASE OF PROPERTY

1.1 Agreement to Sell. The City agrees to sell to DAH and DAH agrees to purchase from the
City, on the terms and conditions contained in this Agreement, the Property.

1.2 Purchase Price. The Purchase Price is ONE DOLLAR {$1.00), payable at Closing.

1.3 No Financing Contingency. DAH has adequate financial resources, debt and equity,
available to it to consummate the transactions contemplated by this Agreement.

1.4 Condition of the Property. Except for the customary warranties of the marketable title
(subject to Permitted Exceptions) and except as provided in Section 5.1, the City
disclaims all warranties, either express or implied, in any way relating to the Property or
its condition. DAH has inspected the Property and the Purchase Price for the Property
negotiated by DAH reflects the Property’s present condition. The Property is being sold
to DAH in its “AS IS” condition and “WITH ALL FAULTS”. DAH may conduct an
inspection of the Property {as herein provided), but if this transaction is closed, the City
shall have no further responsibility or liability for the condition of the Property as of the
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Closing Date. The City also makes no representations regarding the condition of the
property whatsoever, except as provided in Section 5.

SECTION 2
SURVEY AND TITLE COMMITMENT

Title Commitment. Within a reasonable time after the last party signs this Agreement,
the City shall cause to be issued and delivered to DAH, a commitment (the
“Commitment”) for an owner’s policy of title insurance with standard exceptions (the
“Title Policy”) to be issued as soon as reasonably possible after the Closing through
American Title (the “Title Company”) in the full amount of the Purchase Price. The Title
Policy shall be effective as of the date of Closing. DAH shall pay the premium for the
Title Policy at the Closing.

Objections to Title. DAH shall have fifteen (15) days from the date it receives the
Commitment within which to notify the City in writing of DAH’s reasonable objections to
any lien, charge, encroachment, restriction or reservation of any kind or character
whatsoever affecting the Property (“Exceptions”), other than Permitted Exceptions. If
DAH fails to make a written objection to title within the time and in the manner
required by this Section, then DAH shall be deemed to have waived any right it may
have to object to title and to have accepted any Exceptions to the City’s title as
disclosed by the Commitment, which Exceptions thereafter shall be Permitted
Exceptions.

If DAH objects to the City’s title within the time and in the manner required by this
Section, the City shall have thirty (30} days after receiving the written notice of the
particular defect(s) claimed either: (1) to remedy the title to the reasonable satisfaction
of DAH; (2) to obtain a Commitment for title insurance “insuring over” the defect(s) in
title; or (3) terminate this Agreement. If the Agreement is terminated under this Section
then neither party shall have any further rights or obligations under this Agreement.

Current Survey. The City of Albion will provide DAH any previously completed surveys it
has on file of the Property. Prior to Closing, DAH may obtain, at its expense, a current
survey (“Survey”) of the Property. DAH shall provide the City with a copy of the Survey
within five (5) days after DAH receives the Survey. If DAH elects not to procure a Survey,
DAH agrees that in purchasing the Property, DAH is relying solely upon DAH’s own
judgment as to the location, area and boundaries of the Property without regard to any
representation that may have been made by any other person. If the Survey discloses
any Exceptions, which will materially and adversely affect DAH’s intended use of the
Property, DAH may object to such Exceptions by following the procedures set forth in
Section 2.2. if any objection to the Survey is made by DAH within fifteen (15) days of
DAH’s receipt of the Survey in the manner required by Section 2.2, then the City shall
have thirty (30) days after receiving the written notice to remedy the defect(s) in the
same manner provided in Section 2.2 and with the same consequences if the City fails to
remedy the defect(s).
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CITY OF ALBION
Office of the City Manager
Sheryl L. Mitchell

112 West Cass Street ¢ Albion, Ml 49224
517.629.7172 ¢ smitchell@cityofaibionmi.gov

X.l. Request Approval Resolution #2015-18 to Approve Purchase and Development
Agreement with Downtown Albion Hotel, LLC

The Council has approved the Brownfield Redevelopment Plan with Downtown Albion Hotel for
the construction of a hotel. Resolution #2015-18 authorizes entering into a Purchase and
Development Agreement for the hotel construction project. The City agrees to transfer City
owned property for the sum of One ($1.00) Dollar. In order to qualify for state funding and
incentives, it is necessary to demonstrate local participation in a development project. The
transfer of the City-owned property within the project area demonstrates the City of Albion’s
local contribution to the project. The purchase and development agreement is in the best
interests of the City by stimulating economic growth and providing commercial activity
downtown. Seven parcels in the owned by the city and two are owned by the Albion Building
Authority.
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If DAH fails to so notify the City of any such adverse Exception disclosed by the Survey
within thirty (30) days after the date the last party signs this Agreement, then DAH shall
be deemed to have waived any right to object to any Exceptions disclosed by the Survey
and all Exceptions disclosed by the Survey shall be Permitted Exceptions.

Permitted Exceptions. The Property shall be conveyed to DAH subject only to the
following Exceptions, all of which shall be “Permitted Exceptions”:

(a) Those Exceptions , which are affirmatively approved by DAH in writing

(b) Those Exceptions, which are the so-called “standard exceptions” to title in
an owner’s policy of title insurance issued by the Title Company;

(c) Those Exceptions, which the Title Company will “insure over” with
affirmative coverage reasonably acceptable to DAH;

(d) Rights of the public or any part of the Property taken, deeded and/or being
used for public parking, street, road or highway purposes;

(e) Easements for water, sanitary sewer, storm sewer, electricity, telephone
and other utility purposes, if any, and which do not unreasonably interfere
with DAH’s intended use of the Property;

(f) Rea! estate taxes and special assessments which are not yet due and
payable, but subject to the tax pro-ration provisions of this Agreement;

(g) The reservation of oil, gas, and mineral rights by the State of Michigan or
the City; and

(h) Exceptions disclosed by the Commitment or the Survey and which are not
objected to by DAH within the time and the manner required by Section 2.

SECTION 3
DEVELOPMENT OF PROPERTY

Concept. DAH intends to purchase and develop the Property along with adjacent
Property into a hotel. Accordingly, DAH hereby agrees with the City as follows:

3.1.1 Hotel - DAH proposes to build a hotel consisting of four stories and
approximately 72 rooms.

Design and Character Considerations. DAH agrees to adhere to additional design
review by City of Albion staff. The purpose of this review is to insure that the project is
decidedly urban in nature. This additional review will assess the design factors of
density, mass, proportion, height, materials, and other elements as deemed
appropriate.
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Timeframe. DAH agrees to commence construction no later than January 1, 2016.
DAH agrees to obtain a certificate of occupancy by December 31, 2017.

Other Obligations. DAH must adhere to all regulations of the City of Albion, including all
applicable codes and ordinances.

Default. Inthe event that DAH fails to meet any of the criteria established in 3.1
through 3.4, then, by written notice of default given by the City to DAH following such
failure by DAH, the City may, at its option and within its sole discretion, require DAH to
re-convey the Property to the City within sixty (60) days of the written notice of default.
In the event substantial real property improvements have been made by DAH prior to
the City’s notice to DAH as set forth herein, the City shall compensate DAH for the actual
expenses of documented improvements at the time of re-conveyance, including only
hard costs (demolition and construction) and excluding soft costs (architectural, legal,
environmental, and other service fees). The City reserves the right to release DAH of
these aforementioned obligations or renegotiate these obligations if the City
determines that insufficient effort and progress in developing the commercial space is
being made and/ or other unforeseen circumstances preclude DAH from fulfilling its
obligations.

SECTION 4
PROVISIONS WITH RESPECT TO CLOSING

Closing Date. The Closing shall occur at a mutually agreeable location on or before

thirty (30) days after signing of the Agreement, unless extended pursuant to Section
6.1.2.1. At the Closing, the parties shall execute a closing statement evidencing the
transaction and setting forth the closing costs for the transaction.

City’s Obligation at Closing. Subject to the terms, conditions and provisions of this
Agreement, the City shall do the following at the Closing:

4.2.1 Execute and deliver to DAH a warranty deed conveying the Property to DAH
subject to Permitted Exceptions.

4.2.2 Execute and deliver to DAH the closing statement; and

4.2.3 Execute and deliver to DAH any other documents reasonably requested by DAH
to consummate the transaction contemplated by this Agreement.

DAH’s Obligation at Closing. Subject to the terms, conditions and provisions of this
Agreement, DAH shall do the following at the Closing:

4.3.1 Deliver to the City the sum of ONE DOLLAR ($1.00);
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43.2 Deliver to the City and the appropriate documentation that is acceptable to the
City demonstrating that DAH or a representative of DAH has authority on behalf
of DAH to execute and deliver those documents and this Agreement;

433 Execute and deliver to the City any other documents reasonably requested by
the City to consummate the transaction contemplated by this Agreement.

Closing Costs of the City: The City éha!l pay the following at or prior to the Closing:

4.4.1 All real estate taxes and current installments of special assessments, if any,
which are due and owing at the time of Closing.

Closing Costs of DAH. DAH shall pay the following at or prior to the Closing:
4.5.1 Any recording fees for recording the covenant deed and mortgage;

4.5.2  Any amount owed to the Title Company for the Title Policy and the Lender’s
Title Policy.

453 Any real estate transfer tax imposed as a result of the transfer of the title to the
Property from the City to DAH.

Possession. The City shall deliver possession of the Property to DAH immediately
following the Closing.

SECTION 5
REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES

Representations and Warranties of the City. Except as otherwise provided in this

Agreement, the City represents, warrants, promises and agrees to and with DAH and as
follows:

5.1.1 The performance of the obligations of the City under this Agreement wili not
violate any contract, ordinance, judicial or administrative order or judgment
applicable to the City;

5.1.2 There is no litigation or proceeding pending, against or involving the City or
Property which could have an adverse impact on DAH’s title to any/or use of the
Property;

5.1.3 To the City’s knowledge there are no leases or tenancies outstanding with
respect to the Property;

5.1.4 The City is without knowledge as to the presence on the Property of any
Hazardous Materials as defined herein or of any underground storage tanks.
“Hazardous Materials” means (a) any hazardous or toxic substance, pollutant,
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contaminant, material, or waste, including, but not limited to, those substances,
pollutants, contaminants, materials, and wasted listed in the United States
Department of Transportation Hazardous Materials Table (49 CFR 172.101) or
by the Environmental Protection Agency as hazardous substances (40 CFR part
302) and amendments thereto and replacements therefore; or (b) such
substances, pollutants, contaminants, materials, or wastes as are regulated by
the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act of 1976 or the Comprehensive
Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act of 1980, and any
amendments thereto or orders, regulations, directives, or requirements there-
under; or {c) any substances, pollutants; contaminants, materials, or wastes
regulated under and Law relating to the regulation of gasoline, fuel oil and other
petroleum based constituents, or {d) such other hazardous or toxic substances,
pollutants, contaminants, materials, or wastes that are or may become
regulated under and Law; and

5.1.5 The City has taken all required municipal and board action in order to perform
its obligation under this Agreement.

5.1.6 The City makes no other warranties or representations regarding the Property
whatsoever.

5.2 Representations and Warranties of DAH. Except as otherwise provided in this
Agreement, DAH hereby represents, warrants, promises and agrees to and with the City
as follows:

!
1

5.2.1 The performance of the obligations of DAH under this agreement will not violate
any contract, ordinance, judicial or administrative order or judgment applicable
to DAH.

5.2.2 DAH will not do or cause to be done any willful act or thing to prejudice, impair
or hamper the ability of the parties to consummate this transaction and will,
whenever requested by the City, render reasonable assistance and provide
information for the purpose of consummating this Agreement;

5.2.3  In entering into this Agreement, DAH has not relied upon any verbal or written
representations made by the City or any representative of the City, including
any real estate salesperson, regarding the Property or any aspect of this
transaction, which are not expressly set forth in this Agreement; and

5.2.4 DAHis, and at the Closing will be, a Michigan Limited Liability Company duly
organized and validly existing under the laws of the State of Michigan and DAH
| has taken all required corporate/organizational action in order to perform its
! obligation under this Agreement.
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SECTION 6
CONDITIONS TO CLOSING

Conditions to DAH’s Obligation. The obligations of the transaction contemplated by
this Agreement are subject to the satisfaction of the following conditions:

6.1.1 The City removing, at or prior to Closing, any Exceptions to title, except
Permitted Exceptions;

6.1.2 The City hereby authorizes DAH or DAH’s authorized representative to conduct
an inspection of the Property, including the right to do an environmental
assessment and a Baseline Environmental Assessment (collectively the
“Environmental Assessment”), provided that DAH notifies the City at least forty-
eight (48) hours in advance of the name of the company and representative
who will be on site to conduct the inspection or Environmental Assessment and
the schedule for the inspection or Environmental Assessment and that the City
approves of such selection.

6.1.2.1 DAH agrees that any Environmental Assessment will be completed no
later than thirty (30) days after the date this Agreement is signed. In the
event the Environmental Consultant recommends that additional
Environmental Assessment is warranted based upon the Environmental
Assessment report, the DAH may, upon providing written notice to the
City, perform additional Environmental Assessment on the Property at
DAH’s sole cost. Provided, however, the City shall have the option, at its
sole discretion to terminate this Agreement if additional testing is
recommended by the Environmental Consultant. If the notice is given
and the City elects not to terminate the Agreement, DAH shali have an
additional forty-five (45) days to perform additional Environmental
Assessment. The thirty {30) day period and forty-five {45) day period
are hereinafter individually and collectively referred to as the
“Assessment Period.”

6.1.2.2 “Baseline Environmental Assessment” shall mean an evaluation of
environmental conditions which exist at a facility at the time of
purchase, occupancy, or foreclosure that reasonably defines the existing
conditions and circumstances at the facility so that, in the event of a
subsequent release, there is a means of distinguishing the new release
from existing contamination, performed in compliance with the
Michigan Department of Natural Resources Interim Instructions for
Preparing and Submitting Baseline Environ-mental Assessments to the
Department of Natural Resources and for Requesting Optional
Determinations, date June 15, 1995, or the most recent Michigan
Department of Environmental Quality replacement document.
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6.1.2.3 If DAH is not satisfied with the content of the Environmental
Assessment for any reason, DAH may terminate this Agreement during
the respective Assessment Period by providing written notice of the
termination during the respective Assessment Period.

6.1.2.4 DAH assumes responsibility for damage to the Property and any injury
to any person arising out of or related to the Environmental Assessment
work, and agrees to reasonably restore the Property to the condition
existing before the performance of the Environmental Assessment. In
no event shall the City be responsible for any damages or liabilities
resulting from the performance of the Environmental Assessment on
the Property.

Conditions to the City's Obligations. The obligation of the City to consummate the
transaction contemplated by this Agreement is subject to the satisfaction of each of the
following Conditions:

6.2.1 DAH performing, to the reasonable satisfaction of the City, each of DAH's
obligations under this Agreement.

Failure of Condition. In the event each of the Conditions set forth has not been
satisfied or waived on or before the date of Closing then either party may terminate this
Agreement by giving a written notice of termination to the other party. In the event the
Agreement is terminated under this Section, neither party shall have any further rights
or obligations under this Agreement.

SECTION 7
GENERAL AGREEMENTS

Notice. “Notice” means any notice, demand, request, or other communication or
document to be provided under this Agreement to a party to this Agreement. All
Notices required or permitted to be given under this Agreement shall be in writing and
sent to the party at its address or telecopy number set forth below or such other
address or telecopy number as the party may later specify for that purpose by Notice to
the other party. Each Notice shall, for all purposes, be deemed given and received:

7.1.1 If given by telecopy, when the telecopy is transmitted to the party’s telecopy
number specified for Notices and confirmation of complete receipt is received
by that transmitting party;

7.1.2  If hand delivered to a party, when the copy of the Notice is receipted by the
person delivering the Notice;

7.1.3  If given by a nationally recognized and reputable overnight delivery service, the
day on which the notice is actually received at the address specified for Notices;
or;
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If given by any other means or if given by certified mail, return receipt
requested, postage prepaid, two (2) business days after it is posted with the
United States Postal Service, at the address specified for Notices;

If to the City: Mayor Joseph Domingo
City of Albion
112 W. Cass Street
Albion, M| 49224
Telecopy No.: (517) 629-4168

With a Copy to: Dr. Sheryl Mitchell, City Manager
City of Albion
112 W. Cass Street
Albion, MI 49224
Telecopy No.: (517) 629-4168

If to DAH: Dr. Samuel Shaheen, Manager
1100 S. Washington Ave., Ste. 3
Saginaw, Mi 48601
Telecopy No.: (989) 799-5700

If any Notice is sent by telecopy, the transmitting party may as a courtesy send a
duplicate copy of the Notice to the other party by regular mail. In all events,
however, any Notice sent by telecopy transmission shali govern all matters
dealing with deliver of the Notice, including the date on which the Notice is
deemed to have been received by the other party.

The provisions above governing the date on which a Notice is deemed to have
been received by a party, and not its counsel or other recipient to which a copy
of the Notice may be sent, is deemed to have received the Notice.

If Notice is tendered under the provisions of this Agreement and is refused by
the intended recipient of the Notice, the Notice shall nonetheless be considered
to have been given and shall be effective as of the date provided in this
Agreement. The contrary notwithstanding, any Notice given to a party ina
manner other than that provided in this Agreement that is actually received by
the party, shall be effective with respect to that party upon receipt of the
Notice.

Assignability. This Agreement may not be assigned by DAH without the written consent
of the City.

Access to Property. The City hereby agrees that DAH, and its representative, shall have
the right to go upon the Property during the term of this Agreement for any of the
purposes permitted by this Agreement. DAH shall indemnify, defend and hold the City
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harmless for any injuries, losses, claims, demands, causes of action, damages,
judgments, fines and expenses of any kind or nature to any person which occur as a
result of the entry of DAH, or its representative, upon the Property.

Risk of Loss. The rights and obligations of the parties in the event of damage to or
destruction of the improvements on the Property shall be governed by the Michigan
Uniform Vendor and Purchaser Risk Act, unless agreed to otherwise in this Agreement.

Severability. The invalidity or unenforceability of any particular provision of this
Agreement shall not affect the other provisions hereof, and this Agreement shall be
construed in all respects as if such invalid or unenforceable provision were omitted.

Captions. The captions are inserted herein only as a matter of convenience and for
reference and in no way define, limit or describe the scope of the Agreement or the
intent of any provision thereof, and shall not be used in construing the meaning of any
term or provision of this Agreement.

Agreement to Survive Closing. Except to the extent that the rights and duties of the
parties are altered by the documents executed at the time of Closing, the
representations, warranties and agreements of the parties with respect to the matters
addressed in this Agreement shall survive the Closing.

Computation of Time. All periods of time referred to in this Agreement shall include all
Saturdays, Sundays and state or national holidays; provided, however, that if the date or
last day to perform any act or give any notice with respect to this Agreement shall fall
on a Saturday, Sunday, or state or national holiday, such act or notice shall be timely
performed if given to the next succeeding day which is not a Saturday, Sunday or state
or national holiday.

Entire Agreement. This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the
parties, and contains all the agreement between the parties with respect to the subject
matter hereof. This Agreement supersedes any and ali other agreements, either oral or
in writing, among the parties hereto with respect to the subject matter hereof.

Binding Effect. This Agreement shall be binding upon and shall inure to the benefit of
the successors in interest, heirs, personal representatives and assigns of the respective
parties hereto.

Governing Law. The Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with
the laws of the State of Michigan applicable to contracts made and performed in
Michigan, without regard to its choice of laws, irrespective of the residence of the
parties.

Construction. The language in all parts of this Agreement shall in all cases be construed
as a whole according to its fair meaning, and without applying a presumption that the
term in the Agreement shall be more strictly construed against one party by reason of
the rule of construction that the document is to be construed more strictly against the
person who himself, or through his agent, prepared the Agreement, it being agreed the
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representatives of both parties, the parties themselves, or both have reviewed and
participated in the preparation of this Agreement.

Modification. Any modification, change or alteration of this Agreement shall not be
binding upon any party unless such modification, change or alteration is in writing and
signed by each of the parties.

Time is of the Essence. Time is of the essence of this Agreement and of each of the
covenants and provisions herein.

Acceptance. All parties shall have until 5:00 p.m. on April 30, 2015 to accept this offer
by returning a signed duplicate original to the City.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement on the date and year
indicated below.

Dated: 2015

THE CITY OF ALBION
A Michigan municipal authority

By:
Joseph V. Domingo, Mayor

Jill A. Domingo, Clerk

3
1

DOWNTOWN ALBION HOTEL, LLC
A Michigan Limited Liability Company

By:
Dr. Samuel Shaheen, Manager
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Fax (517) 629-6004

March 17,2015

City of Albion

City Manager, Sherly Mitchell
112 W. Cass Street

Albion, MI 49224

Subject: Albion Housing Commission’s Audit Report for Fiscal Year
End September 30, 2014.

Dear Ms. Mitchell:

Enclosed please find a copy of the Albion Housing Commission’s Financial
Statements, and Report on Internal Control and Compliance for the Fiscal
Year Ended September 30, 2014.

If you have any questions or concerns, please contact the housing office by

calling (517) 629-2511 or by email albionhc@wowway.biz.

Sincerely,
ALBION HOUSING COMMISSIO]

Ann Kemp, PHM
Executive Director

Enc.

EQUAL HOUSING OPPORTUNITY




image87.jpg
Page |13

EXHIBIT A

PARCELS

Address Parcel Number
107 W. Center St. 51-000-886-00
111 W. Center St. 51-000-885-00
117 W. Center St. 51-000-884-00
119 W. Center St. 51-000-883-00
121 W. Center St. 51-000-881-00
212 S. Superior St. 51-000-893-00

216 S. Superior St. 51-000-894-00
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HOTEL BLOCK PROPERTIES

ADDRESS PARCEL I.D. CURRENT OWNER
107 W. Center St. 51-000-886-00  City of Albion
111 W. Center St. 51-000-885-00  City of Albion
117 W. Center St. 51-000-884-00  City of Albion

119 W. Center St. 51-000-883-00  City of Albion
121 W. Center St. 51-000-881-00 City of Albion

108 W. Porter St. 51-000-895-00  Albion Building Authority
112 W. Porter St. 51-000-896-00 Albion Building Authority
118 W. Porter St. 51-000-897-00 Bishop Acquisitions LLC
120 W. Porter St. 51-000-898-00 Bishop Acquisitions LLC

208 S. Superior St. 51-000-891-00 Proactis Development Strategies
210 S. Superior St. 51-000-892-00 Proactis Development Strategies
212 S. Superior St. 51-000-893-00  City of Albion
216 S. Superior St. 51-000-894-00 City of Albion




image89.jpg
- On Thu, 3/26/15, Office of U.S. Representative Justin Amash (imailagent)
<MI03JAIMA@mail.house.gov> wrote:

> From: Office of U.S. Representative Justin Amash (imaitagent) <MI03JAIMA@mail.house.gov>
> Subject: Response from the Office of U.S. Representative Justin Amash (Intranet Quorum
IMA00101513)

> To: mauricebarnes477 @yahoo.com

> Date: Thursday, March 26, 2015, 12:08 PM

>

>

>

>

>

> March 26, 2015

> Dear Mr. Barnes,

>

> Thank you for contacting our office regarding the Albion Housing Commission,

> | appreciate the time that you have taken to bring this matter to our attention.

> As you know, | contacted the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development
> On your behalf, and its final response is attached.

>

> Thank you again for contacting us. | trust you will find this information

> helpful.

>

> Sincerely,

>

>

> Kristin Byl

> Office of U.S. Representative Amash

> Third District of Michigan

>

>
>
>




image90.jpg
a"‘ us,;,

MAR 2 6 20%

weu 'w

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development

"“ *5 Detroit Field Offics
Office of the Director

Patrick V. McNamara Federal Building

‘*w uw;\° 477 Michigan Avenue, Room 1710

Detroit, Ml 48226-2592
Tel. (318)226-7900 FAX (313) 226-5611

MAR 2 4 2015

Honorable Justin Amash

U.S. Representative

Third District of Michigan

110 Michigan ‘Stieet NW — Suite 460 }
Grand Rapid, MI 49503 = .

Dear Representative Amash:

Thank you for your inquiry dated March 17, 2015 regarding a constituent, Mr. Maurice
Vernon Barnes, Jr. Mr. Barnes is seeking four answers in his inquiry to your office related (o the
Albion Housing Commission. The HUD Office of Public Housing has the monitoring and
oversight responsibility of the Albion Housing Commission, and provides the following
responses to Mr. Barnes’ questions. Please nole that the City of Albion does not govern the
Albion Housing Commission, rather a five-member Board of Commissioners, appointed by the
Mayor, governs the Commission. The Housing Commmlon is a separate entity from the City,
per Michigan Public Act 18. . -

HUD staff contacted the Executive Director of the Albion Housing Commission, Ms.
Ann Kemp, on Wednesday, March 18, 2015, in order to address this inquiry.

Question 1: Does the Albion Housing Commission have a written policy covering the day-to-
day business use of housing vehicles?

HUD Response: Ms. Kemp states that the Housing Commission does not have a written policy
covering the day-to-day business use of housing vehicles. However, she is currently working on
developing one for approval by the Board of Commissioners. Once the policy is approved by the
Board, Mr. Batnes may request to teview a copy from the Housing Commission, as it is public
information.

Question 2: Does the Albion Housing Commission have a written policy covering the day-to-
day personal use of housing vehicles? A) If so, what are the policies covering reporting the
vehicle mileage for personal use?

HUD Response; Ms. Kemp states that the Housing Commission does not have a written policy
covering the day-to-day persounal use of housing vehicles. However, she is currently working on
developing one for approval by the Board of Commissioners. This office has.directed the
Housing Commission to cease personal use of the vehicle, until a-policy is developed and
approved by the Board. Once the policy is approved by the Board, Mr. Barnes may request to
review a copy from the Housing Commission, as it is public information.

www.hud.gov




